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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
S 5 47 22

Turnover ( HK$'000) SR (THT)

Profit (loss) for the year ( HK$°000)

Earnings (loss) per share (HK cent) W& F| (&48) (1)

Adjusted EBITDA (HKS$'000) LI EBITDA (F#C)
(Note 1) (KtaEL)
Net debt gearing ratio (%) FAMBERLR (%)
(Note 2) (H17#2)
Notes :

1.

Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (“Adjusted EBITDA”) is computed as profit
(loss) before tax plus depreciation, interest on bank and other
borrowings, write down of inventories, impairment loss on
available-for-sale investment, fair value loss on derivative
financial instrument and less reversal of write down of inventories
and impairment for bad and doubtful debts, fair value gain on
derivative financial instrument, and gain on disposal of available-
for-sale investment.

Net debt gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including bank
overdraft, bank and other borrowings, obligations under finance
leases and trust receipt loans less bank balances and cash over
shareholders' equity.

AR B A (B 48) (T8 T)

262,714 217,180 45,534
1,655 (6,115) 7,770
0.22 (1.00) 1.22
12,705 4,535 8,170

41.5% 16.5% 25.0%
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GEOGRAPHICAL TURNOVER ANALYSIS
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Geographical Turnover Analysis for the Years Ended 30 April 2014 and 2013
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TURNOVER ANALYSIS BY PERCENTAGE
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SALES AND PRODUCTION NETWORK
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV X &

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors™),
I hereby present the results of QPL International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2014.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the fiscal year under review, the Group reported a turnover of
HK$262,714,000, representing an increase of 21.0% as compared
with HK$217,180,000 for the previous year. The Group achieved
a consolidated profit amounting to HK$1,655,000 as compared
with a consolidated loss of HK$6,115,000 for the previous year.
Basic earnings per share was HKO0.22 cent (2013: loss per share of
HK1.00 cent).

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year (2013: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s business maintained
growth momentum and have continuously improved since the
second half of the fiscal year. The Group achieved an increase of
21.0% in turnover during the year under review.

In terms of geographical segments, the Group performed relatively
well and enlarged its market share in several countries. During
the year, the Group’s sales in the the United States of America
amounted to HK$61,938,000 (2013: HK$45,323,000) and
represented an annual increase of 36.7% in this segment. Besides,
the Group’s sales in the Philippines amounted to HK$26,240,000
(2013: HK$21,739,000) which represented an annual increase of
20.7%. Furthermore, for the Group’s sales in Thailand, the Group
achieved an annual growth of 36.8% reaching HK$19,330,000
(2013: HK$14,133,000). The Group will continue to enhance its
marketing efforts to expand its market coverage.

During the year, staff costs increased to HK$74,517,000 (2013:
HK$61,019,000), representing a 22.1% increase compared with last
year. Despite the sharp increase of basic wages in the Dongguan
area of around 20.0%, the management has put in good measures
to streamline operations. Therefore, the rise in staff costs was in
line with the increase in sales.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
The Group’s bank balances and cash amounted to HK$9,600,000

as at 30 April 2014 (2013: HK$8,683,000). To finance its working
capital, the Group had incurred total outstanding debts of
HK$40,796,000 as at 30 April 2014 (2013:HK$21,507,000), which
comprised HK$698,000 (2013: HK$1,742,000) of trust receipt
loans, HK$38,937,000 (2013: HK$13,182,000) of collateralised
bank borrowings, HK$212,000 of bank overdraft (2013: nil),
nil (2013: HK$54,000) obligations under finance leases and a
HKS$949,000 (2013: HK$6,529,000) loan from a director. In
terms of interest costs, HK$39,847,000 (2013: HK$14,978,000)
was interest bearing and HK$949,000 (2013: HK$6,529,000) was
interest free.

Net debt gearing ratio was 41.5% as at 30 April 2014 (2013:
16.5%). During the year, the Group benefited from the bank
arrangement to have a stronger cash position by transferring more
trade receivables to the bank in exchange for obtaining the cash in
advance of the relevant settlement dates. This helped to support
the Group’s business growth especially in the period of second
half of the year. As at 30 April 2014, the Group has transferred
trade receivables amounting approximately HK$51,619,000
(2013: HK$23,948,000) and in return received bank advances
of approximately HK$38,937,000 (2013: HKS$13,182,000) as
collateralised bank borrowings. Thus, there was a sharp rise of
gearing ratio as at 30 April 2014.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s transactions and monetary assets are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi.
The fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year ended
30 April 2014 did not adversely affect the Group’s operations or
liquidity.

During the year under review, the Group entered into several
foreign exchange contracts to manage the currency exchange
risk of Renminbi against US dollars. All these foreign exchange
contracts were entered into to hedge against the Group’s exposure
to currency fluctuations and it is the policy of the Group not
to enter into any derivative contracts purely for speculative
activities. Fair value loss on derivative financial instrument
was HKS$3,679,000 for the year, including net realised gain of
HK$477,000 recorded during the year and unrealised loss of
HK$4,156,000 was booked as at 30 April 2014. Such unrealised
loss does not have an impact to the Group’s real cash flow for the
year ended 30 April 2014.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OTHER GAINS
During the year ended 30 April 2014, the fair value of the AFS

investment increased significantly. The Group decided to realise
the gain and disposed of the related shares in several batches,
which resulted in a gain of HKS$6,983,000 during the year. The
available-for-sale investment was fully disposed of during the
year.

TERMINATION OF THE LETTER OF

INTENT (THE “LOI")
On 29 January 2014, the Company, Luyou International Sports

Limited (the “Seller”) and Mr. Li Tung Lok entered into the
LOI in relation to the proposed acquisition of the entire equity
interest of Luyou International Holdings Limited. Under the LOI,
it was agreed that, in consideration of the grant of exclusivity by
the Company and Mr. Li to the Seller, the Seller would pay an
exclusivity payment of USD1,000,000 (the “Exclusivity Payment™)
to the Company.

Despite the Company’s repeated requests and demands, and a
demand letter issued by the Company’s solicitors to the Seller
to demand payment of the Exclusivity Payment, the Seller failed
to effect payment. Accordingly, the Company chose to treat the
Seller’s non-payment as a repudiation of the LOI, and the LOI
was terminated with effect from 3 June 2014.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 29 January 2014 and 4 June 2014.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 April 2014, trade receivables with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$51,619,000 (2013: HKS$23,948,000) were
pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Group invested

HK$15,117,000 (2013: HK$15,668,000) in acquiring property,
plant and equipment. This capital expenditure was financed by
internal financial resources.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY
As at 30 April 2014, the total number of employees of the Group

was 993 (2013: 818). The increase in the number of employees was
mainly to catch up with the Group’s business growth momentum
during the year. The Group maintains its emolument policy to
ensure that employee remuneration is commensurate with job
nature, qualifications and experience. The Group continues to
offer competitive remuneration packages, share options and other
benefits to eligible staff, based on the performance of the Group
and of individual employees.

BiN Y&

REE B DU A =+ RERE > ATt s
G 2N AR IEIE N o A% 46 H P il s B B
S SCHE H B AR B B DR A AR A A i A
6,983,000%5 7T o ] Ak B H O ACAE B A U
/% o

kR (TR )

M E—P4E—H T JUH - ARNFE] 88K B
BERMARAR (TEH]) K2R LG ENE
o WA I R A R A PR A D A R B AN B S T
SRR o RIER I E B F KA A W
B PR 2 AR o ' O TR 1 A A ] SAY
1,000,0003% G 2 BE M HEA 2 ([ B AE Ak ) o

il AR 2 7 E 2 R BRGSO AT R A
Al A EL ] B 7 R SR A EK A LA ZER B 7
SO PEARE AT 3K > (BT SR BEAT K« BLL > A
0N R T O 7 AR ST A A A R e o 2 BE R
MmEmECH - F—HERA = A RELEL -

E—LREEHE AR R A A T —E—H
ZHUA R ZEFEAENANA Z A -

¥

AT —UAE A =+ H > BR1E(E 451,619,000
T (T — =4F © 23,948,000% 7T) 2 B 5 L
AIEC I > DIBUS R T AL E 2 RATE R -

¥ A B 5

PR ZFEIENA =+ B IRERE - AEEK
%15,117,000% 75 (=% — = 4F © 15,668,000 7C)
WS B - BRSO o BLIH AR B ST LR AR
BABS B IR AT o

e B B i 4 B oR

R —PAENH =+ H > AEEZ R BB
993 N (F— =4 1 818 N) - f& B A #Hus fin 32
B TINE AL B TN AR 2 R - A
S B A A AT W EOR > FECRIE B 3B L AE
PEE -~ G RS ER A o A5 SR 4 A IR AR
KARANE B 2 FHLIM A s B TR 5T
ZHTIN AR A R R Atk A A o

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4E#§

11



12

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV 2§

PROSPECTS
The Group expects to face a range of challenges in the PRC

such as labour shortage and rising salaries. In order to improve
its operational performance, the Group will continue to impose
tight controls over its manufacturing overheads. The Group will
also continue to review its existing product mix and customer
portfolios to optimise its production capacity utilisation.

In order to expand the Group’s market share and sustain its
competitive edge, the Group will continuously strengthen its
engineering efforts in production planning in order to optimise its
cost structure. It is expected that an optimised cost structure will
give rise to higher production yields, cost savings and a reduction
in lead-time. As a result, the Group will be able to serve its
customers better and get more production orders.

According to the latest forecast made in June 2014 by the
International Data Corporate (IDC), an information technology
research firm, media tablets and smartphones were forecasted
to grow 15.6% year on year in 2014. Such sales growth will be
a major driver for growth in the semiconductor market in 2014.
It is expected that many of the Group’s world-class customers
will benefit from this trend. Through its solid foundation in
engineering and new products development, the Group looks
forward to the prospect of a period of sustained growth. In
addition, the Group will continue to explore other business
opportunities with a view to generating improved returns for the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders™).

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity

to express my gratitude to my fellow Directors and all staff for
their efforts and contribution. Besides, I also would like to offer
my sincere appreciation to all customers, business partners and
Shareholders for their continuing support.

By Order of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 25 July 2014

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HRRFHBEHNEBZ R

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 62, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Li has
been an Executive Director and Executive Chairman of the Board
since January 1989. Mr. Li has also served as the Chief Executive
of the Company since January 1989 (except for the period from
February 2004 to December 2008). He is also a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible
for the Group’s corporate strategic planning, overall management,
business and product development. He has a B. Sc. Degree in
Chemical Engineering and over 38 years of experience in servicing
the semiconductor industry.

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick, aged 44, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since December 2008. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall sales, services and supplies management.
Mr. Phen obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
Loughborough University of Technology, Loughborough, United
Kingdom. He has over 21 years of experience in semiconductor
sales, services and supplies management through his previous
employment with different companies in Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Phen had worked as a Customer
Services Engineer and then a Deputy Director, Account
Management of ASAT Limited, a subsidiary of ASAT Holdings
Limited, which was an associated company of the Group during
1991 to 1996, and then from 1996 to 2001 was a Sales Director
at SMI Limited, a subsidiary of SDI Corporation, a company
incorporated in Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. How Sze Ming, aged 37, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since September 2013. He has
also been the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. How has about 15 years of experience in the investment
banking and business assurance industries. He graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a first
class honour bachelor’s degree of Business Administration
(majoring in Professional Accountancy). After graduation, Mr.
How worked in the audit and business assurance department
of PricewaterhouseCoopers. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. At present, Mr. How is the Managing Director of
the investment banking division of CMB International Capital
Limited. Prior to joining CMB International Capital Limited,
he worked in several renowned investment banks with China
background in Hong Kong.
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HFELEAEHEAR Z R

Mr. Lee Kwok Wan, aged 46, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since September 2013. He
has also been the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee has more than 16 years of accounting and management
experience. He holds a master degree in Business Administration
and a bachelor’s degree in Commerce and Accountancy. He is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. At present, Mr. Lee is the Chief Financial
Officer of a sizable company in Hong Kong engaging in the
manufacture of watches and the company secretary of Major
Holdings Limited, of which is listed on the GEM Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Also, Mr. Lee is currently
an independent non-executive director of Neway Group Holdings
Limited, of which is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Chan Kin Fung, Phil, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since October 2013. He has
also been the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Chan, an investment banker and a lawyer, is the chief
executive officer of Wallbanck Brothers Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited, which is engaged in businesses such as corporate finance
(mergers and acquisitions of listed companies and IPOs), private
equity and asset management.

Mr. Chan began his career as a lawyer, specializing in corporate
finance and securities law. He worked as a manager at the
corporate finance department of the Listing Division of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He held senior positions
at various investment banks, as the executive director of CEF
Capital Limited, an investment banking arm and joint venture
between CIBC World Markets and Cheung Kong Holdings
Limited, and as an executive director and head of investment
banking of Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and
Grand Cathay Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, respectively.

Mr. Chan read law in England at Lancaster University and
College of Law (Chester), and attended University of Cambridge
as a British Chevening Scholar. He holds a Bachelor of Laws
degree and six master degrees in Corporate & Financial Law,
Financial Engineering, Applied Finance, Corporate Finance,
Banking and Professional Accounting.
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Mr. Chan is a solicitor of the Supreme Courts of England and
Wales and of Hong Kong, a legal practitioner of the Supreme
Court of Tasmania of Australia, and an advocate and solicitor
of the Supreme Court of Brunei. He is also a Certified Public
Accountant of Hong Kong and Australia. He is a solicitor at
Messrs. PHILLIPS Solicitors.

Mr. Chan’s public service includes previous appointments as a
member of the Hong Kong Insider Trading Tribunal, the Expert
Panel on Listing and the Expert Panel on Securities of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and the Consent
Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsui Lai Ki Vicki, aged 38, joined the Group since December
2011 as the Company Secretary. Ms. Tsui is an associate member
of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. She holds a bachelor in Accountancy from the
University of South Australia and has over 18 years of experience

in the company secretarial field.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Man Fu, aged 42, joined the Group since July 2013
as the Group Financial Controller. Mr. Chan holds a master
degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong Baptist
University. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has over 18 years
of professional experience in financial management, corporate
reporting, accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Chan acted as similar positions in two manufacturing
companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to building and maintaining best
practice standards of corporate governance. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality
Board, effective internal controls, stringent disclosure practices
and transparency, independence and accountability to all
Shareholders.

The Company has adopted its own Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “QPL Code”) incorporating the
principles and code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). A copy of the QPL Code is posted on the Company’s
website (www.qpl.com).

For the year ended 30 April 2014, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all code provisions set out in
the CG Code except for the deviations explained in the relevant
paragraphs below. Nevertheless, such deviations are considered
by the Board to be immaterial given the size, nature and
circumstances of the Company.

THE BOARD

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. Responsibilities of the Board include but are not limited
to the formulation of the Group’s strategy and policies, setting of
corporate and management targets and key operational initiatives,
monitoring and control of operational and financial performance,
and approval of major capital expenditures, major investments,
material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or
financial restructuring and significant operational financial and
management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations
of the Group’s businesses to the executive management under
the supervision of the chief executive of the Company (“Chief
Executive). The division of responsibilities between the Board
and the management is set out in the QPL Code.

Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have
also been established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs. Details of these three committees are set out below.
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The Company has established a policy enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense. The Board will provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the businesses of the Group, and that the balance
between executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks for safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and to enable the Board to
exercise independent judgment.

As at 30 April 2014, the Board comprised 5 Directors, including
two executive Directors, one of whom is the founder of the
Group, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive, and three
independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board and the Board committees, and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the Board and
Board committees’ meetings during the year are set out below:

Board
Name of Directors meetings
I E
WA frik
Executive Directors ARG
Li Tung Lok ( Chairman of the Board 78 i 4 (# & T 515
and Chief Executive) FITH )
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick (Senior Vice — iV (# £ % SI5
President of Sales and Marketing) AR E AR
Independent Non-executive Directors 18 3 JE i 47 # ¢
How Sze Ming (Note 1) B () 33
Lee Kwok Wan (Note 1) ZRE (Hi1) 33
Chan Kin Fung Phil (Note 2) BRaY (ffi2) 212
Sze Tsai To Robert (Note 3) PR (M 73) 2/2
Robert Charles Nicholson (Note 4) B & B (f:4) 202
Wong Chun Bong Alex (Note 3) FARI (W i3) 212
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AlA o R LUR GO A0 A > DR BR R 2 A 55 K
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ATE-PENA=+H EFRGHAKEFM
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REHRGRERGZAEGERMA L F TSR
FIE

Meeting Attendance/Eligible to attend

LS Vi 1)
Audit Remuneration Nomination 2013 Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
meetings meetings meetings Meeting
(173 i ®#e —F-=k
ZHAAE ZHAGE ZHAGE BRORASKRE

N/AAE A 22 N/IAKE v/
N/AAE A N/AAHE H N/AARE A X
11 11 11 v/
11 11 111 v
11 0/0 000  N/AKEF
22 11 11 X
12 11 11 X
22 11 11 X
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Notes:

1. Mr. How and Mr. Lee were appointed as independent non-
executive Directors with effect from the conclusion of the annual
general meeting held on 23 September 2013. Their attendances
were shown with reference to the number of the meetings
held during the year after their appointment as independent
non-executive Directors and chairmen/members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee.

2. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 24 October 2013. His attendances were shown with
reference to the number of the meetings held during the year
after his appointment as an independent non-executive Director
and members/chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee.

3. Mr. Sze and Mr. Wong retired as independent non-executive
Directors with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting held on 23 September 2013. Their attendances were shown
with reference to the number of the meetings held during the year
before their cessation as independent non-executive Directors
and chairmen/members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee.

4. Mr. Nicholson resigned as an independent non-executive Director
on 7 October 2013. His attendances were shown with reference
to the number of the meetings held during the year before his
cessation as an independent non-executive Director and members/
chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee.

The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and experience
in corporate management, strategic planning, legal, accounting
and financial matters. Of the five Directors, two independent non-
executive Directors are qualified accountants.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section on pages 13 to 15 of this Annual Report. The information
is also available on the Company’s website. In addition, a
list containing the names of the Directors and their roles and
functions is posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Throughout the year under review, the Board has complied with
Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in having
at least three independent non-executive Directors (representing
at least one-third of the Board) with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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The Board has assessed the independence of all of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
(i1) the absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Company; and (iii) the absence of any financial, business or family
or other material/relevant relationships between the members
of the Board or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgment.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES' MEETINGS
In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman holds at least
two meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of the executive Director.

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis. The bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) allow Board
meetings to be conducted by means of a conference telephone or
similar communications equipment by means of which all persons
participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
Also, a resolution in writing signed by each of the Directors for
the time being in the relevant territories shall, provided such
Directors would constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board
convened to consider the resolution, be valid and effectual.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board and Board committees’
meetings and reasonable notice for non-regular Board and
Board committees’ meetings are given to all Directors/committee
members so as to ensure that each of them had an opportunity
to attend the meetings. The company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board
and Board committees in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The agenda and the accompanying meeting papers are sent in full
to all Directors/committee members at least 3 days before the date
of meetings.

After the Board and Board committees” meeting, draft minutes are
circulated to all Directors/committees members for their comment
before execution and approval. All minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and available for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice given by the Directors/committee
members.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of

chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Li Tung Lok has been the Chairman of the Board since the
establishment of the Company in January 1989. Mr. Li has also
served as the Chief Executive since January 1989 (except for
the period from February 2004 to December 2008). Being the
founder of the Group, Mr. Li’s industry expertise and detailed
understanding of the Company’s operations is highly regarded by
the Company. Accordingly, vesting the roles of Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive in Mr. Li adds significant value to the
Company’s business growth while enhancing the efficiency of the
decision-making process in response to the changing environment.
Given all major decisions are reserved to the Board and a majority
of the Board members are independent non-executive Directors,
the Company considers that there is an adequate balance of power
and authority in place between the Board and the management of
the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of
not more than three years, subject to retirement and re-election
pursuant to the Bye-laws.

APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT AND
RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every

director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-laws, half of the Directors (excluding Director(s)
holding office as executive chairman and/or managing director,
who is/are, by virtue of Bermuda law, exempted from retirement
by rotation) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting
of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election. As the
executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not subject
to retirement by rotation. In order to comply with Code Provision
A.4.2, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed to voluntarily retire and be
re-elected at least once every three years. At the 2012 annual
general meeting of the Company held on 18 September 2012, Mr.
Li voluntarily retired from office and was re-clected as executive
Director.
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The Company currently does not have a Director holding office as
its managing director.

A retiring Director is eligible for re-election and the re-election
of retiring Directors at general meetings is dealt with by separate
individual resolutions. Where vacancies arise at the Board,
candidates are proposed and put forward to the Board for
consideration and approval. The Shareholders may propose a
candidate for election as a Director in accordance with the Bye-
laws. The procedures for such proposal are posted on the website
of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Board was informed of updates of current Listing Rules,
accounting practices and disclosure requirements as and when
necessary.

The Directors understand the need to continue to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills for making contributions to
the Company. During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Directors
attended external seminars and read materials on topics relevant
to their duties as Directors. The Directors have been required to
provide the Company with their training records on an annual
basis, and such records are maintained by the Company Secretary.
In addition, the Directors also disclose to the Company their
interests as directors or other offices in other public companies
in a timely manner and update the Company on any subsequent
changes.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for dealings in
the securities of the Company by Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year under review.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary, Ms. Vicki Tsui, is responsible to the

Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and
the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.
These objectives are achieved through adherence to proper Board
procedures and the timely preparation and dissemination of
meeting agendas and papers to the Directors. Minutes of all Board
and Board committees’ meetings are prepared and maintained
by the Company Secretary to record in sufficient details the
matters considered and decisions reached by the Board or Board
committees. All draft and final minutes of Board and Board
committees’ meetings are sent to the Directors and committee
members respectively for comments and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and that it takes
these into consideration when making decisions for the Group.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group’s compliance with all obligations under the Listing
Rules and The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, including the preparation, publication and despatch
of annual reports and interim reports within the time limits laid
down in the Listing Rules and the timely dissemination of the
same to the Shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Group’s securities, connected transactions and price-sensitive/
inside information and ensures that the standards and disclosures
required by the Listing Rules are complied and, where required,
reported in the annual report of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. All
members of the Board have access to the advice and service of
the Company Secretary. Ms. Vicki Tsui was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company in December 2011 and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. The Company
Secretary confirmed that she has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements of the Listing
Rules.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The annual and interim results of the Group are published in a
timely manner, within three months and two months respectively
of the year end and the half year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting
records are kept so that the financial statements can be prepared
in accordance with the appropriate accounting policies, applicable
accounting standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
under review, the Directors have:

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them on a
consistent basis;

- made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; and

- ensure that they are prepared on a going concern basis.

Senior management of the Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
business activities and development of the Group in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The statement of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“DTT”), regarding their reporting responsibility is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 42 to 43 of this
Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established in April 2000 pursuant to
the then Code of Best Practice of the Listing Rules.

As at 30 April 2014 and up to the date of this Annual Report,
the Audit Committee has consisted of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. How Sze Ming (being the
Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lee Kwok Wan and Mr.
Chan Kin Fung Phil. Mr. How Sze Ming and Mr. Lee Kwok Wan
are qualified accountants with extensive experience in accounting,
audit and financial matters.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange and also available from the Company Secretary
on request.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee include:

- overseeing the relationship between the Group and its
external auditor;

- reviewing the appointment of the external auditor to ensure
continuing auditor’s independence;

- reviewing the Group’s preliminary results, interim results
and annual financial statements;

- monitor the corporate governance of the Group including
compliance with statutory and the Listing Rules
requirements; and

- assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by
providing an independent review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting system, and effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system.

The annual report for the year ended 30 April 2014 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit
Committee include:

- Meeting with the Chief Executive and senior management
of the Company from time to time to review the interim
and final results, the interim report and annual report and
other financial, internal control, corporate governance
and risk management matters of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board;

- Considering and discussing the annual and interim reports
with a view to ensuring that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards;
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= Meeting with the external auditor, DTT, to consider
the reports of DTT on the scope, strategy, progress and
outcome of its independent review of the interim financial
report and its annual audit of the consolidated financial
statements, discuss its independent review of the interim
financial report and its annual audit of the consolidated
financial statements (in each case without the Company’s
management being present); and

- Assisting the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
maintaining an effective system of internal control.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year the engagement letter from the
external auditor confirming their independence and objectivity
and holds meetings with representatives of the external auditor to
consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and retention of the external auditor.

The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of DTT for the
various services listed below is as follows:

- Audit services — include audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by the
external auditor.

- Non-audit services — include services that would normally
be provided by an external auditor but not generally
included in audit services, for example, review of the
interim financial report.

- Taxation related services — include all tax compliance and
tax planning services.

For the year ended 30 April 2014, a remuneration of
HK$1,000,000 was paid and payable to DTT for the provision of
audit services and HK$303,000 was paid and payable to DTT for
the provision of non-audit services (including review of interim

report and tax related services) to the Group.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in January 2006.
As at 30 April 2014 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the
Remuneration Committee has consisted of one executive Director,
namely Mr. Li Tung Lok, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kin Fung Phil (being the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. How Sze Ming and Mr.
Lee Kwok Wan.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
consistent with those set out in the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and also
available from the Company Secretary on request.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

- making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration;

- reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

During the year under review, work performed by the
Remuneration Committee included:

- determining the remuneration package of newly appointed
Directors and making recommendation to the Board for

approval;

- reviewing and fixing the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the independent non-executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The fees of the Directors and emolument of senior management
are determined with reference to their respective duties and
responsibilities, expertise and experience in the industry,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
remuneration benchmarks from other companies and prevailing
market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to
determine the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the
responsibility for reviewing and determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management
of the Company is delegated to the Remuneration Committee.

2014 REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors from
the Company and its Group companies. The amounts paid to each
Director for the year ended 30 April 2014 are as below:

i T B3R
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Other emoluments

Joqb 4

Salaries Retirement
and Other Benefit Total
Name of Directors Fees Benefits Schemes Emoluments

HERk Bk
WA e HfbHEA At B T 4 B
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T#x T#T T#T
Li Tung Lok 2= [m) 44 135 = = 135
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick EASE = 1,485 74 1,559
Sze Tsai To Robert 53 P 200 = = 200
Robert Charles Nicholson e 164 = = 164
Wong Chun Bong Alex FIRF 120 = = 120
How Sze Ming E38 151 = = 151
Lee Kwok Wan W E 151 = = 151
Chan Kin Fung Phil ot 7 129 = = 129
Total A 1,050 1,485 74 2,609

The remuneration paid to the members of senior management by
bands for the year ended 30 April 2014 is set out below:

Remuneration Bands

WEZF RN A =+ H k4B A B
BB ST 2 0 BN AL #) > 2 BRI R

Number of Employees

0 T AL i ELA ¥
HK$nil - HK$1,000,000 Z#E 7T — 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 5¢ — 1,500,000 7T 2
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BOARD NOMINATION AND
APPOINTMENT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in January 2006.
As at 30 April 2014 and up to the date of this Annual Report,
the Nomination Committee has consisted of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kwok Wan (being the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. How Sze Ming and
Mr. Chan Kin Fung Phil.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
reviewed and revised with reference to the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange and also available from
the Company Secretary on request.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include:

- reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the candidates nominated for directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular, the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive.

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included:

- identifying candidates suitably qualified to be appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company and
assessing their independence pursuant to the requirement
under the Listing Rules;

- approving for nomination of candidates as independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendation to
the Board for approval of appointment; and

- reviewing the annual confirmation of independence
submitted by the independent non-executive Directors and

assessing their independence.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed its practices
on Board diversity, formalised and adopted a policy by the Board
which recognises the benefits of a Board that possesses a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Board’s nominations and appointments will continue to be
made on merit basis based on its business needs from time to time,
with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection
of Board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs from time to time, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience.

The Board diversity policy is posted on the website of the
Company’s website. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the policy and monitoring the progress on achieving the
measurable objectives from time to time to ensure its effectiveness
and application.

The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board:

Number of Directors
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to
establish and maintain a sound and effective internal control
system to ensure the smooth running of operations, safeguard
the Group’s assets and the Shareholders’ interest as well as to
ensure the reliability of financial statements in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. In devising internal controls,
the Group has regard to the nature and extent of the risk, the
likelihood of it crystallizing, and the cost of controls. A system
of internal control is designed to manage, but not eliminate, the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute, assurance against the risk of material
misstatement, fraud or loss.

During the year, the Board delegated the management to evaluate
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls system. The management would from time to time report
the identified deficiencies to the Audit Committee of the Company

for recommendations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communications with the investment community when the interim
and year end financial results are announced and during the
course of the year. A policy on shareholders’communication,
which is available on the Company’s website, was adopted and is
subject to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
about the Group to the Shareholders through the publication of
notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports.
An up-to-date consolidated version of the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws of the Company is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, the directors of a company, notwithstanding anything in
its bye-laws shall, on the requisition of members of the company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the company as at the
date of the deposit carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting of the company. The requisition must state the
purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the company, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

All substantive resolutions at general meetings are decided on a
poll which is conducted by the Company Secretary and scrutinised
by the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. The
results of the poll are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Regularly updated financial, business
and other information about the Group is made available on the
Company’s website for the Shareholders and stakeholders.
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The last shareholders’ meeting of the Company was the 2013
annual general meeting (the “AGM”) which was held on 23
September 2013 at The Mira Hong Kong, Hong Kong. The
Directors are requested and encouraged to attend shareholders’
meetings albeit unforeseen circumstances which might prevent
the Directors from attending such meetings. Separate resolutions
were proposed at that meeting on each substantive issue and the
percentage of votes cast in favour of such resolutions as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 23 September 2013
are set out below:

Resolutions proposed at the AGM

AKurl i HRR KRG /IR —FE—-=4FLA
-+ = H{RHEF#The Mira Hong Kongf472
"R -EZERRAFEREG (REAFERG]) -
8 T BE A oK W] T B 21 UL R SR R
& o AR ) G R R R R o A
REg LEM&EHEERIHRZBEIORER > W
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Percentage of Votes

RIRHOHAER R B2 YR BEASK

1. To adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 100.00%
30 April 2013 and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.
BMARNABE ZF—=4F00H =+ H R R S0 % 5 R R % T T i B A R

2. To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company 100.00%
and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.
HOR RS TEE) « BB 7 & RERIAT S A A B 2 AR B o I AR HE A e e o L .

3. To authorize the Board of Directors to fix the Directors’ remuneration. 100.00%
REEFEMEHE R ZME -

4(A). To give a general mandate to the Directors to issue new shares of the Company. 99.99%
RT#HF— R > IBEAT AR N R Z 8 By o

4(B). To give a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares of the Company. 100.00%
RTPEF A - DU AL 7 2 Ry o

4(C). To extend the general mandate to the Directors to issue new shares following 99.99%

the repurchase of shares of the Company under the general mandate in Resolution No.4(B).

WRIZ TSR — AR - Al AR B2 5 4(B) T PRk 58 P 0 2 — LA B [0 AR 4 W) 2 B 4%

BATHRBA -

All resolutions put to the Shareholders at the AGM were passed.
The results of the voting by poll were posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Enquiries,
comments and suggestions to the Board or the Company are
welcome and can be addressed to the Company Secretary by
mail to 8/F., Hale Weal Industrial Building, 22-28 Tai Chung
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong or by email at
ir@qplhk.com.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and
sale of integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and
investment holding.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2014 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 44.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 30 April 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company did not have reserves available for distribution to
the Sharecholders as at 30 April 2014.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

(1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium accounts.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s turnover and purchases for the
year ended 30 April 2014 attributable to its major customers and
suppliers were as follows:

Turnover attributable to: Rl
Largest customer BKEF
Five largest customers HRER

Purchases attributable to: B AL PR A -
Largest supplier TN ]
Five largest suppliers R LR

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of
a Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Tung Lok

( Executive Chairman and Chief Executive)
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert
( Retired with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting held on 23 September 2013 )
Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson (Resigned on 7 October 2013)
Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex
( Retired with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting held on 23 September 2013 )
Mr. How Sze Ming
(Appointed with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting held on 23 September 2013 )
Mr. Lee Kwok Wan
(Appointed with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting held on 23 September 2013 )
Mr. Chan Kin Fung Phil
(Appointed on 24 October 2013 )

ERE P R

AL EEFES LMERRERE T - WFENA
=1 IR E R A REEZ G L
T

%
20
51

27
56

HEH - HH BB LB Ot # % T B
A AL T B 84T A 5% & ) A4 R AT Ao Wy
] B 0 8 A A 2 T K0 5 0 A A i

o 2
AR R A I Z EF T

PuATHE P

A 46
(B 7L AT EAG )

2R

% JE AT

29 1 Sk
(FBILE = F—~SHNA == AR
T AT A 5 R B3

R EL S (B = F S A )

RIS
(HBIEE = F—~ZHNA == HRF72
AT A 55 IFAER)

B s
(REMLEH—=F—SHNA == AR
T A 55 R 2E 52

=3 BN
(HEMEE = F—ZHNA == HREFZ
AT A 55 R BEAER)

Bl 8 g7k

(B —FE— =4 H =AW HEZT)

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4E#§

35



36

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HRETWRE

Pursuant to bye-law 102A of the Bye-laws, Mr. Phen Hoi Ping,
Patrick, being the executive Director, will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer himself to re-election at the annual
general meeting to be held on 18 September 2014 (the “2014
AGM?”). Pursuant to bye-law 102 of the Bye-laws, Mr. How Sze
Ming, Mr. Lee Kwok Wan and Mr. Chan Kin Fung Phil, being
the independent non-executive Directors, will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2014 AGM.

As the executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not,
by virtue of Bermuda law, subject to retirement by rotation. In
order to comply with the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
which stipulates that every director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years, Mr. Li Tung Lok has
agreed to voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once every
three years. At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 18 September 2012, Mr. Li Tung Lok voluntarily retired from
office and was re-elected as an executive Director.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 13 to 15.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 30 April 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, chief executive and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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LONG POSITION IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

AR 2 i) B Ay B M B JBe B 2 3 A

Number of issued ordinary shares/

underlying shares of the Company

Il

A LB AT I R R A B A
Percentage
of the issued
Personal Family Corporate share capital of
Name of Director interests interests interests Total  the Company
Al 2
C#fTRAZ
A T A 22 o B e 2 2 il i 2 At ARl
Mr. Li Tung Lok 2[R 458 4
- Ordinary shares in issue — ST R 273,794,282 3,000,000 18,590,944 295,385,226 38.49%
(Note a) (Note b)
(Wtita) (Witb)
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick YT
— Unlisted share options — 3 bR 1,260,000 = = 1,260,000 0.16%
Notes: Vi3
a. The family interests of 3,000,000 shares represent the interest of 4. KB RELE 23,000,000 & 173 ) 2= 7] 44 Se 4 2 3E
the wife of Mr. Li Tung Lok. TFIHERS o
b. Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owns Solar Forward Company Limited, . A [E 4e S A A A TR/ > 5%/ 7l

which owns 18,590,944 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2014, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company and its associated corporations.

18,590,944 % A< 5w B Ay ©

R ESCRT R &SN > R = F—AERA =+
B A 2N R o o B AT B B A ALY R B HAR
i B 2 WSy~ R B B R o A A

T B AT AT 4 EOR A
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HE R
SHARE OPTIONS s It
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in A<\ 7] B B HE 51 81 2 2615 HUR 456 WP IR M 5
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. 31

The movements in the Company’s share options granted to the 5% K {E B JIr M52 A< 4\ &) i e HE A 4F 1A 2 58 8l 1
Directors and employees during the year were as follows: I

Movement during the year

Outstanding Outstanding
Date of grant at I May 2013 Granted Exercised Forfeited ~ at 30 April 2004~ Exercise period
Ro%-2E R
A= EhgH WA=+
fham WAL i3 it Bitk WAGE AN
Category I: Directors
N %
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick 3 December 2009 §40,000 = = = §40.000 10 December 2009 to 2 December 2014
ghTRE ZETNETCAZR CEEMEFCRATRECE-MEL AR
3 December 2009 420,000 = = = 420000 3 December 2010 to 2 December 2014
ZETNETZAZR CE-REFCAZRECE-MELZACH
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert 3 December 2009 140,000 = = (140,000 - § December 2009 to 2 December 2014
FRERAE ZERRNETZAZH CERNETCAARECE-WETZAZR
3 December 2009 70,000 = = (70,000 - 3 December 2010 to 2 December 2014
“EENETCRZH “E-RETCACHECR-METCACH
Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson 3 December 2009 140,000 S S (140,000 ~ 10 December 2009 to 2 December 2014
RRERE CERNETCAZH SRRMET AT RECE-WET AR
3 December 2009 70,000 - - (70,000 ~ 3 December 2010 to 2 December 2014
“RRAFTZAZH CE-REFCHZRECE-WELCACA
Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex 3 December 2009 140,000 = = (140,000 - 7 December 2009 to 2 December 2014
Bk RENETZAZR CEEMEFCALRECE-MEL AR
3 December 2009 70,000 = = (70,000 - 3 December 2010 to 2 December 2014
ZERNETZAZR CE-REFCAZHECE-MELZACH
Total Directors 1,890,000 - - (630,000) 1,260,000
5
Category 2: Eligible Employees
AR ARER
3 December 2009 7,376,660 = = (1,247,667) 6,12899 3 December 2009 to 2 December 2014
“RENETZAZR CEEMEFCAZRECE-WELZAZH
3 December 2009 3,698 334 = = (623.833) 3074500 3 December 2010 to 2 December 2014
RENETZAZR CE-RETZACRECE-WETZAZA
Total eligible employees 11,075,000 - - (1,871,500) 9,203,500
RERERAR
Total all categories 12,965,000 - - (2,501,500) 10,463,500
R et

No options were granted or exercised during the year under  [\] i 4F 5 Ay HiE 48 552 1 Tk IS i 7 40 Fs S W HEE 7 o
review.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described in the sections
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares” and “Share Options”, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or underlying shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of them had any right to subscribe for the securities of
the Company or its associated corporations, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

No Director was a party to a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Other than the interests disclosed in “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”, as at 30
April 2014, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are determined with reference to their respective
duties and responsibilities, expertise and experience in the
industry, the performance and profitability of the Group as
well as remuneration benchmarks from other companies and
prevailing market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power
to determine the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the
responsibility for reviewing and determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management
of the Company is delegated to the remuneration committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
(i1) the absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Company; and (iii) the absence of any financial, business or family
or other material/relevant relationships between the members
of the Board or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgment.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board as at the date
of this report, the percentage of the Company’s shares which are
in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares throughout the year ended 30 April 2014.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Chairman

25 July 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B8 S A% B Rl R o

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
QPL International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 44 to 123, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 April 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

#HQPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(B B 52 7t M ko2 2 A R4 )
B JBe K

AAITE T 445 123 H 2 QPL International
Holdings Limited ([ 52y & 1) K & 2 7 (%8
FRIEER D 245 MBHRE REMTEREC
TR ZZF—EN A =1 B 2 4565 BB IR %
BE % H L 2 55 A8 M A A i e 3R
SBOEMEEHRRGAHERER  UAFEG
T ISR ARE B R0 A S B B o

0 55 S B B R AR 2 AT

BARERHAARRBEFEEGHNAET (FiEE
a2 B 1) AR A 22 A v 5 o A ) 4 B
O3 FMRAT] 2 392 5 0 5 i B e BRI AT M B R A
BB > R TR AR S B AR
WAER L RER B - LAE AR S R AN AT AE B R
S B R A B K B R R

B W il 2 5 AT

AT 2 BEALRMRBEANT 2 W25 558 M
RIERTI o RITRAL A R 2 2 A S0
T o % 1 B BOROE AAT 2 B o BRI
AT 2 Wl A A AL R & o AATHEA AR i
HEZRE - BHAMAEA LA TSR EAL
AT AR A o w AN A A 2 A i R )
AT o R ZORAATE B TE R > 0
FLB| RPATE - USRS I A M R
TR AN A AT A FOK 8 R O



[INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
¥ 7 A% BB e

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 April
2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 July 2014
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CONSOL IDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A TR A e U Ath 2 v I 2

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

2014 2013
TR PEE E A
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Mt Ft T#T Tt
Turnover wEH 7 262,714 217,180
Other income HAb A 8 5,415 3,033
Other gains and losses HoAth i 75 M s 18 8 7,101 3,432
Exchange loss, net [ifE 5, Js5 15 V3% B (1,006) (1,300)
Changes in inventories of finished BB B B 2
goods and work in progress TE & 5 H) 4,886 (267)
Raw materials and consumables used i Ji JF A1 B} B2 7 #E (112,790) (85,461)
Staff costs & 8 A (74,517) (61,019)
Depreciation of property, plant and LUE S S Y P
equipment 14 (13,256) (12,637)
Fair value (loss) gain on derivative fiAE 4R T 2N il
financial instrument (5 48) Y 5 (3,679) 396
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ] {8t it & 3% & 2 I (B 5 18
investment - (205)
Other expenses HoAth B 32 (71,436) (68,043)
Interest on bank and other borrowings ZH it 1. 4F (A 4 Bl % 2 SR 17
wholly repayable within five years R HoAth 4 B 2 B (733) (413)
Profit (loss) before taxation o B8 T Vi A (fes 121 2,699 (5,304)
Taxation BiIH 9 (1,044) (811)
Profit (loss) for the year AR AT B i A (5 18) 10 1,655 (6,115)
Other comprehensive (expense) income: 4l 2= i (B 3% ) W22 :
Items that may be subsequently n] 1 B
reclassified to profit or loss: Ba 2 HHE -
Exchange differences arising on WS SN ETS B A
translation of foreign operations [ifE 58, 75 #H (26) 27
Net gain on fair value changes of A RN A E
available-for-sale investment S ) 2 I8 o I AR 2,825 6,929
Impairment loss on available-for-sale 18 & $11 5%k 22 o] it i &
investment charged to profit or loss & 2 WE K 15 - 205
Cumulative fair value change of A IR 48 4R 2 aT 4k
available-for-sale investment LEREZ BFHARE
recycled to profit or loss upon 5 )
disposal (6,983) (3,318)
Other comprehensive (expense) income A< 4F B HAth 4 T (B 32) i 4
for the year (4,184) 3,843
Total comprehensive expense A AR B 4 TH B S AR
for the year 2,529) (2,272)
Earnings (loss) per share B A () 12
Basic and diluted FEAR e HK 02 centifll  (HK 1 cent#{ll)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i o S IR DL

At 30 April 2014 JA = F—PU4EH A =+ H

2014 2013
ZR—W4AE RS
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
ks T#x T
Non-current assets Ik B) %
Property, plant and equipment LE S &L 14 58,955 57,361
Available-for-sale investment ISRy 15 - 4,787
Advance payment for acquisition W B - A X
of property, plant and equipment WA 2 B 533 1,094
59,488 63,242
Current assets AR A
Inventories & 16 35,168 24,680
Trade and other receivables & G T HAth JE Ui 3k TH 17 71,039 43,764
Deposits and prepayments i 4 S LAY AR IE 17 3,836 3,442
Derivative financial instrument fiiE i T H 18 - 46
Bank balances and cash SRAT 45 % KB 4 19 9,600 8,683
119,643 80,615
Current liabilities ) 2 1K
Trade and other payables B Gy B HoAth I At 3 I 20 35,060 21,197
Trust receipt loans and bills payable (ERAE 3~ S0 IR 21 3,410 3,710
Deposits and accrued expenses i 4 B e T2 20 20,484 18,173
Taxation payable JRE 50 B TH 746 731
Bank overdraft RAT % X 19 212 =
Bank and other borrowings SRAT K HoAth 48 22 39,886 19,711
Derivative financial instrument T A 4 i T H 18 4,156 =
Obligations under finance leases il 5 L ) 7 A 23 - 54
103,954 63,576
Net current assets i B R 15,689 17,039
75,177 80,281
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

IR IS

At 30 April 2014 JA = F—PU4E A =1+ H

NOTES
Mt it

Capital and reserves Wi A B i B
Share capital i@ 24 61,390 61,390
Share premium and reserves JBE A5y Vi A I foth Af 13,786 16,315

Equity attributable to owners of the 7% 2 v YA N HE A

Company HE 23 75,176 77,705

Non-current liabilities J 0 £ 4%
Accrued rental expenses JE 51 FH 4 BH 2 - 2,575
Deferred taxation I SE i TH 25 1 1
1 2,576
75,177 80,281

The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 123 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
July 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

DIRECTOR
#HH

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
Aok B i A ) 5

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% % U4 A =+ H L4

EQUITY

At 1 May 2012 RZZ—_#Hf—H 61,390 147812 40475 12,310 342 4748 267 (187,367) 19971
Loss for the year KAEEBR - - - - - - - (6,115) (6,115)
Other comprehensive income A6 [ S {1 2

for the year e - - - - 3,816 - 27 = 3,843
Total comprehensive income A6 [ 2 i L i

(expense) for the year (%) 4% - - - - 3816 - 7 (6,115) @)
Forfeiture and lapse of share 1 iU i 1 ¢ B

options FH - - - - = (2,008) = 2,208 =
At 30 April 2013 REZF-ZFNAZTH 6139 147812 40475 12,310 4,158 2,540 294 (191,74) 71,705
Profit for the year AR A - - - - - - - 1,655 1,655
Other comprehensive expense A% L4 i

for the year 53 - - - - (4,158) - (26) - (4,184
Total comprehensive (expense) A4 27 (%)

income for the year Wi % - - - - (4,158) - (26) 1,655 (2,529)
Forfeiture of share options YRR - - - - - (514) - 514 -
At 30 April 2014 REZ-MENA=ZTR 61,39 147812 40475 12,310 - 2,026 268 (189,103) 75,176

Notes: M -

a. Contributed surplus represents the excess of the net assets of 5. BRI TR B A v EERME » B A
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the Company’s N FVE B AR T B AT 2 IR0 1 T (B 2 2548 o
shares issued as consideration.

b. Capital redemption reserve represents the excess of the b, A TR [ A S B ) A N B X Ik 2 T A A

consideration paid for repurchase of the Company’s ordinary
shares over the par value of respective repurchased shares.

> R L AR B 0 [ T 4 T (i 2 22 R o
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CONSOLIDATED
HABESRER

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% —%

STATEMENT OF

PRI H =+ H 1R 4 RE

CASH FLOWS

2014 2013
ZR—W4AE TR AR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#x AR P
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BRERH
Profit (loss) before taxation ok Bt A1 e ) (s 1) 2,699 (5,304)
Adjustments for: R
Interest income FE WA 5) 9)
Interest on bank and other U LA N A U R
borrowings wholly repayable Z AT I
within five years HoAth 5 2 2 F) S 733 413
Depreciation of property, plant and LE S ST P
equipment 13,256 12,637
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A] Ak B T R 1R
investment - 205
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale 8 R fik t & 4% & > I £5
investment (6,983) (3,318)
Fair value loss (gain) on derivative M4 TR A AE
financial instrument JE 18 (U %) 3,679 (396)
(Reversal of) write-down of inventories (93 1) ik A7 & (659) 302
Reversal of bad and doubtful debts, net % [8] JR IR 2 15 48 (20) (4)
Reversal of accrued rental expenses % ) JRE ST AR 45 B 2 (2,765) =
Gain on disposal of property, plant B - MRS R
and equipment, net G TRER | (118) (114)
Operating cash inflows before Kt e s w2
movements in working capital BEBERA 9,817 4,412
(Increase) decrease in inventories 1288 (3m) W (9,829) 3,319
Increase in trade and other receivables & % S H: by JE iz 3 JE 14 fin (179,242) (60,962)
Increase in deposits and prepayments % 4 & T8 £ 2 JE 3 Jin (394) (310)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other ‘& % K H A B A R TE B4 (i 22)
payables 12,170 (9,430)
Increase in bills payable JRE A S 4 384 744 129
Increase (decrease) in deposits and e I FE T2 A 8 om ()
accrued expenses 2,462 (3,484)
Cash used in operations £ T B 4 (164,272) (66,326)
Income tax paid EAT T A5 Bl (1,029) (814)
Interest paid E AT FLE (733) (433)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING £ # 38 i JH 8L & 5 %
ACTIVITIES (166,034) (67,573)

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mABlamEg

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 # % %

PUAEPY H =+ B ORAREE

2014 2013
“R-WAEE F
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000
T#T T#s 7T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B R
Interest received £ Y FLE 5 9
Purchase of property, plant and 3=/ E R F Y & ]
equipment (12,864) (10,661)
Advance payment for acquisition of Wi B 2L - B AR TR A
property, plant and equipment ZBGK - (930)
Proceeds from disposal of AR B R E
available-for-sale investments I 15 3K IH 7,612 4,193
Proceeds from disposal of property, B ZE - A K&
plant and equipment A BT A5 A 385 292
Proceeds from settlement of derivative &% 58 A1 4E 4 fil T E
financial instrument BT 15 3K I8 639 247
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING  #t % 3£ % Wi JH 3L & % i
ACTIVITIES (4,223) (6,850)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES [ gt )
New bank borrowings raised BT HE SR AT 177,640 85,257
Repayment of bank borrowings fE R RAT B - (4,429)
Repayment of obligations under B Rl AR 4 AR A
finance leases (54) (452)
Repayment of borrowings from BE—AEREE
a director (5,580) (4,010)
New trust receipt loans raised HTHE S BT W B K 35,839 25,149
Repayment of trust receipt loans R A5 FE PR B (36,883) (32,287)
Increase in bank overdraft SRAT I SN 212
NET CASH FROM FINANCING il 3 ) i
ACTIVITIES Bl 4& 58 171,174 69,228
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN BH&KR%SHBAE&¥H
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  Hjm (3 4) & %i 917 (5,195)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4E¥I 284 K%M
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR B4&WH 8,683 13,878
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4E#&2Bl4& K%M
AT END OF YEAR B4eXH
Representing bank balances and cash  $8 R 47 &5 ik S Bl & 9,600 8,683
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”) that is different from the
functional currency of the Company which is United States
dollars (“USD”) as the directors of the Company control
and monitor the performance and financial position of the
Company by using HKS.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the
manufacture and sale of integrated circuit leadframes,
heatsinks and stiffeners and investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 33.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
The Group has applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011
cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and
financial liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 statements, joint
arrangements and
disclosure of interests in
other entities:
Transition guidance

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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i B B s R B
For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial
statements

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in
other entities

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate financial
statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in associates
and joint ventures

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive
income

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping costs in the
production phase of a
surface mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7
“Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities” for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about:

(a) recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”; and

(b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS
32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting

financial assets and financial liabilities” (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
for financial instruments under an enforceable master
netting agreement or similar agreement. The Group has
not offset any recognised financial instruments but the
Group has derivative financial instruments that are under

enforceable master netting agreements.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 have been applied
retrospectively and the relevant disclosures are set out in
note 18.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS ON
CONSOLIDATION, JOINT ARRANGEMENTS,
ASSOCIATES AND DISCLOSURES

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011) together with the amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding transitional
guidance. HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable
to the Group as it deals only with separate financial
statements.

The impact of the application of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
ad HKFRS 13 is set out below.

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC) Int-
12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor
has control over an investee when (a) it has power over
the investee, (b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and (c) has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control
over an investee. Previously, control was defined as the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when
an investor has control over an investee.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS ON
CONSOLIDATION, JOINT ARRANGEMENTS,
ASSOCIATES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” (continued)

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to determining
which investees are controlled by the Group.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of
the consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of
its involvement with investees as at 1 May 2012 and a
subsidiary set up after 1 May 2012.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities”

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has
not had any impact on the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad, and
applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, subject to few exceptions.

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS
13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

In accordance with the transactional provisions of HKFRS
13, the Group has applied the new fair value measurement
and disclosure requirement prospectively. Other than the
additional disclosures as set out in note 26, the application
of this new standard has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

2
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS ON
CONSOLIDATION, JOINT ARRANGEMENTS,
ASSOCIATES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
1 for the first time in the current year. Upon the
adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s
”statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as the
“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income”. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% — & —H4EN A =1 H 14

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

HEE D 3 T B 486465 W A o S
e Q) (17 8 I 3 o MR 0 1) (40

O A M W A 2 3802 ) B B T
¥ 1 e

A4 310 4 2 LT 7 A e e R
B2 AT B KRB RT B A i R A

effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012
cycle?

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013
cycle?

Mandatory effective date
of HKFRS 9 and
transition disclosures?

Investment entities!

Accounting for
acquisitions of interest
in joint operations®

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation
and amortisation®

Defined benefit plans:
Employee
contributions?

Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities'

Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-
financial assets!

Novation of derivatives
and continuation of
hedge accounting!

Financial instruments?

Regulatory deferral
accounts®

Revenue from contracts
with customers’

Levies'
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014.
2 Available for application — the mandatory effective

date will be determined when the outstanding phases of
HKFRS 9 are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014 with limited exceptions.

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

& Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements

beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

C Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories
in HKAS 2 or value in use for the purposes of impairment
assessment in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

- the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

- the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefit will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% — & —H4EN A =1 H 14

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE

ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
In the event that an operating lease that contains lease
incentives is terminated in advance of its original lease
term, the outstanding lease incentives previously recognised
as liability will be reversed and credited to profit or loss
upon the termination of such lease.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HKS$) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of the translation reserve.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EE A HEBOR ()

A s

R A 5 251 ) 4 B B S R R - LA
ZE MO W LIS B ¥ (S T2
5y J31E 38 by A 2 38 A HE R DL o g &
B2 2 TR BRI 2
B LBk o 7 o U A R R S LASME
MEA 2 BWIHH %2 B 28 AR
WHRE o 50 R EIIRZ JF & W IH B 25 L
SMRERE(E > R R E A SR (EE H 2 2 T
SREHHE o LA By B 00 4 B S R A
AMEZIFEBWIEHE > A TEHRE -

HERWEHAAERGRERWEAELZ
HEE 5, 26 A )9 1A e Ae 300 () A 18 i vh e RR o

BRI EE G B RE N & > A% iGN
B 2 EE R AR HE Ao W SRR 2
0] MR R A B A AR B 2 ) i B R (R
JC) o T B ST IR AR R 2 5P 2 BE
R o TR Z TSR (W) R HAh
AT A PP R o NI AR T 2 MR £
JHF &5t e

i 2 A

PRI WS~ Bl A S A R (RDREAR
B AR O AT AR iR s R 2 E )
MEZREEZEERAERAZEFEEL
B > R R BE AT AR E R e
BRIE - REFEEE MR G EMEREZH
ST P A R 5 T MR B 2 BB - A
BB A EAR AR R

o A HL A £ B A S E A T e R 2 1R

ﬁILO

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4E#§

63



64

Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes, the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
and the defined contribution provident fund regulated
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit (loss) before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price for inventories, in the ordinary
course of business, less all estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include loans and receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) and available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset of the Group classified as held for trading
represents a derivative that is not designated as a hedging

instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the profit or
loss includes foreign exchange gain and is disclosed as fair
value (loss) gain on derivative financial instrument line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment of financial assets below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are neither
designated nor classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity instruments held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are charged to
profit or loss in the period in which the impairment takes
place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EE A HEBOR ()

TR ()

SWERE (4D

B 2 ()

I 97530 Y 8 A4 U 1) B R T (1 R Rk
AL > B A 4 a7 2 (A 1R
4 T 7 2 MR AT B 4T o 5406 R 2 G 1A
S MR 25 T TR o % R 5 IR Wk E
Py R U ] o ) BB A R 8 o HLAR i)
ST E O 2 KIE - IR E A o

il T 3t Hh B < O E AN HE BB > S
HIT A At 2 T Wi i e w8 2 B i s 1R
TP 5% ME 8 AR 2 S TRD 7S B 2 1B o

MR NAT B2 EMEET S > W
(L i 18 < RS BB AR U ] Bl > > T A I
EB R SEERREEZFHEA
bR - RIS AT R RD 2 B (E R 1R B i 1R 4R
8 1E] > B % P (A [ A 2 R
TET LA 75 L 2 v T 0 ol (L < 8 G A o

AT AR R 2 W e TR R AR
S TAI7E 18 i B o O O (R BB A 1R AR
ZATANT 3 0 TG B B A At 4 T W 4 A R
B A ik R

AR B AR TR

EHE BT 2 e A AR A TRIIR
R PTRT S K22 PR 2 TR 7 L B R R
ARTHZERITHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4E#§

69



70

Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 # % —ZF— U4 H =1 H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability of the Group classified as held for
trading represents a derivative that is not designated as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the profit
or loss includes foreign exchange gain and is disclosed as
fair value (loss) gain on derivative instrument line items
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, trust receipt loans and bills payable, accrued
expenses and bank and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share option granted to the directors and employees
of the Group, the fair value of their services received
determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the Company
are required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following is key source of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Determining whether items of property, plant and
equipment are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment,
which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use of the cash-generating units to which items of
property, plant and equipment have been allocated. The
Group performed impairment assessment by estimating
the value in use of the cash-generating unit in which the
property, plant and equipment are attributable to. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The discount rate represents the
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. If
the actual future cash flows are less than expected or if
there are events or changes in facts or circumstances which
results in a revision of estimated cashflow, impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment may arise. At 30
April 2014, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is HK$58,955,000 (2013: HK$57,361,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed
in note 14.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to equity holders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the trust receipt loans and bank and other
borrowings disclosed in notes 21 and 22 respectively, net of
cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owner
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with the issued share capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the issue of
new shares as well as raising new banks/other borrowings
and repayment of existing banks/other borrowings, if
necessary.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets

Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash
equivalents)

Derivative financial instrument

AFS financial asset

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Derivative financial instrument
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ST H (5
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT Wb 5 W e 4 B B e SR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments include AFS A E 2 E 4R T B A4 ] At e
investment, trade and other receivables, derivative financial GG N HAfb E Y R TE > T4 R T
instrument, bank balances and cash, trade and other H SRIT4 8 L4 - B 5 K HAh A 3k
payables, trust receipt loans and bills payable, accrued TH ~ {5 FE U4 & 3k I B A 4% - ME T
expenses, bank overdraft and bank and other borrowings. F ~ SRAT 5 S DL IR AT R HAB A o L5
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in ot O s S oy Bl ) O e i
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial S5 4 R T ELAA B 2 R B A 35 T 8 R B (&
instruments including market risk (currency risk, interest W R B~ e L B S B A R A5 B
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and B K i B s 4 B o 0T R AR 5% A5 L B 2
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out SR A TR S0 o 4 PR A R R S % 4E L
below. The management manages and monitors these Bar o DAREEAR K R AT 250t 7 B0 3 15 = A
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented 45 8 T 3 2 T B R B ER T R 2
in a timely and effective manner. There has been no 75 2 e K s ) o
significant change to the Group’s exposure to market risks
or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
Market risk LE Y-
(i) Currency risk () B
The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and its AL EEN A EE > HEKE
monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are P ARG EEUSEHER
principally denominated in the functional currencies ZUiee M (DT ko & )
of respective group entities, which are mainly FHE - AT > ALEEAGEED AR
HKS$ or USD. However, the Group has purchases w(TNRH D) FHEZ & R B 232
and expenses transactions which are primarily Sy o 7N 4 (8] B IR SI JHE R T ST 4 [E 35
denominated in Renminbi (*“RMB”). The Group PR o SR > 45 R % D) B 1 A R
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging B > DAREAR e S RE A Rt B BUE
policy. However, the management closely monitors i
foreign exchange exposure to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s major AL EEDIINEFHE 2 B G E
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and KA s H 2 IR AR
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
-4 =i
2014 2013 2014 2013
R -NEE R4 CR-NE CF -8
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
T#x TH# T T#L TH#TT
RMB N R 832 2,565 31,526 20,172

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

In addition, at 30 April 2014, the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk is also arising from inter-
company receivables due from foreign operations
of approximately HK$110,000 (2013: inter-
company receivables amounting to approximately
HK$499,000), which were not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.
These inter-company receivables do not form part of
the Group’s net investment in foreign operations.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s major
sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase and decrease in
HKS or USD against RMB. 5% (2013: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and the aforesaid
inter-company receivables and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency exchange rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit (2013:
a decrease in post-tax loss) where the HKS$ or USD
strengthen 5% against the relevant foreign currency.
For a 5% weakening of the HKS$ or USD against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit (2013:
post-tax loss), and the amounts below would be
negative.

Increase in post-tax profit 4F B B BE 4% & A
for the year ¥ m

(2013: Decrease in (ZF—Z=4F R
post-tax loss o 4% M 15 B D)
for the year)

RMB AR

ST R ()
SO L gt 4 B H B B BOSR ()

i B4l B (40

1)

B i ()

AN A E—JU4E A =4 H »
A% 4 (3 Z0 T B 2 4K R B R R B RE
Wit S 6T 2 8 w45 8k 49 110,000
Wt (& — =4 YL A [ &5
5 49499,000%5 75) > A B ECE M R
DIAH B4 BB S 2 Thae B R -
7% 5 ME ML ) ) 465 B I S A 2
B i 9 AP TS 2 IR B ) — Ry o

UK b7

AR AR S A T B S T A
ROMFHER BT R RES% (% —=
1 5%) IR T A R R BURBE AT
5% 2% B (i) 2 U 0 A L > AR
A T B A1 W HE R 2 5 BT RE A
L BT R RTA o BURREE 70 A7 18 L 45 D
SN Ty B 2 R AR B IH E LA &
ot B i R T A B o Sl A A
R 5005 B B2 5 TH H R AR IEAT
AR SR - T RZIESER
W ITE R T AR BR SN THE S Yol 2
BB AR i A (& — =4 R
Bl s i D) o T BRIt A
B SN HZ (B S0l > L3 BRABEAR it
(ZF— =4 RBRER) 5%
WM AR 2 8 > T 3R 2 3K H IR
i J B o

2014 2013
ZR-NE —F=F
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#xL TH#T
1,529 855
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent currency risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group currently does not expose to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to its financial assets
and financial liabilities. As at 30 April 2013, the
Group was exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to its obligation under finance leases.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on interest-bearing financial
assets and financial liabilities, which are mainly
balances with banks which are short term in nature,
and trust receipt loans, bank overdraft and bank
borrowings which carry interests at the USD trade
finance rate, plus a margin. It is the Group’s policy
to keep its trust receipt loans, bank overdraft and
bank borrowings at variable rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The directors of the Company consider the
Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on interest
bearing bank deposits and bank overdraft, are not
significant as the bank deposits and bank overdraft
are within short maturity periods and no material
fluctuations on interest rate are expected, so no
sensitivity analysis is presented regarding the
financial assets.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rates for
variable rate bearing trust receipt loans and bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point
(2013: 100 basis point) represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
variable rate bearing trust receipt loans and bank
borrowings.

If the interest rates had been 100 basis point higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 30 April
2014 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$396,000 (2013: post-tax loss would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$149,000).

Equity price risk

At 30 April 2013, the Group was exposed to
equity price risk in relation to its AFS investment
which was measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The management managed this
exposure by reviewing this investment regularly.
Details of the AFS investment are set out in note 15.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that the change in prices had occurred at
30 April 2013 and had been applied to the exposure
to price risk for the Group’s AFS investment at that
date.

A 25% change in equity prices represented the
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in prices. 25% was used at 30 April 2013 as
a result of the volatile financial market.

At 30 April 2013, if the price of the respective
instrument had been 25% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
investment revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$1,197,000 as a result of the changes
in fair value of AFS investment.

ST H (%)
o 75 L B 4 P B R BOOR (A
i 35 B B ()
(i)  FIFEE b ()
U BE 53 BT

(iii)

DA SRR o3 BT T AR A5 4 ] A R 2R
FTE 2 A5 U hE B I SRAT & B
St ] 45 BROIRE 22 mT R = JL g 1
FERE o A BT T B 5 W] 45 R
F 2 K 8 8 A R S R R E R
TR AR B - 10018 38 (—F—=
A 1001 8 ) 48 % g 345 v] s
FIZRGHE 2 A5 5t oo B3R R T 15
A 2 A P9 AT RE 2 ) P A BEA

R A E T+ B 100H = B ifi
JIt A A 538 A e S A > I A 4
BEZWENA =+ H ILEE
2 R B AR B R € WD &)
396,000% 7T (—F —=4F : RHiE
i 16 M & 1 0 Ik D £9149,000%
JG) °

AR 18 15 1 B

MR -ZFNHA=+H > AEH
LRI $ i S0 ) A TR DL SR (B R
B2 A] it B R I A A%
JE\ B o A R A% i RE AR a2 A B
B EUERER - THLERE
Z kR HOR M RELS

BRI 7> by

PATF U BE A T R — % — =
F0 A =+ H E A BUE A S BT
fEE IO RALEEZ A E
AT B P T R R AR R o

25% 1 IR AS (B A s ) > (R R BT
WAE A% 2 £ BT BE S B BT 1 Y RE
i o B 4B AT B ) > MO =&
— = 4E H =+ H i f25% Lt 8 -

s —E—=4FNA=1+H > B’iKZ
H T H 2 E# LT Bk25%m Br
HH A B AN > QIAREE
& EAG S R T s SR E 2
N SR S BT HEn,W822 1,197,000
W IT o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(iv)  Other price risk
The Group is mainly exposed to risk through
fluctuations of RMB/USD exchange rate affecting
estimation of fair value of its structured foreign
currency forwards contract. Details of the forwards
contract are set out in note 18.

As at 30 April 2013, the directors of the Company
consider the Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk on the structured foreign currency forwards
contract is not significant as such contract contains
a knock out feature that would terminate the
outstanding contract when the cumulative gain
reaches a pre-set threshold. However, as at 30
April 2014, downward fluctuations on the relevant
exchange rate are expected, so sensitivity analysis
regarding the structured foreign currency forwards
contract as at 30 April 2014 is presented below:

The sensitivity analysis on structured foreign
currency forwards contracts is estimated by
reference to 5% change in foreign currency forward
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.
The management of the Group considers that 5% is
reasonable change in foreign exchange rate between
USD and RMB. The Group’s post-tax profit for the
year ended 30 April 2014 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$4,083,000/HK$5,137,000 where
RMB is 5% strengthened/weakened against USD as
at 30 April 2014.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause financial loss to the Group due to failure of the
counterparties to discharge their obligations in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets arises from the
carrying value of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ST R ()
S e g 4 B H A e BOR (75)

il 35 B B (%)

(iv)  H A ER%E
AL [ 3 ] 2y i 2R LA R R AN
=A AN A REMFT AR
3 T BE S I5k B 107 17 2 b £ A% JE
B o 5 1A 40 2 AT O B RELS -

R-F—=FNA=+H  AxH
TSR0 A AN A B DR A R A e
A K BT T A S SR R EO
B % & TR 5T A — SO A58 > 5
25t 4 72 B TE A2 2K R g 41k
RIBITEH) R > R ZF— P4
PO =+ H > T8 A B M 5 iy
BURWE N Bk P H) - IR 251
SPESNIOERI G AR —F 4
A =+ H 2 BUBE AT

A MR S I ) 1 4 2 URRE 3 A
T %25 TP i 1 T 4 R 1 W e A
B 2 2 5% S B i it o A< SR B 3
& 8 7% 5% 2y 55 70 SN B A I B
ZEMEE o FHR % UAEN A
=+ HZ ANRWHETIHE, B E
5%IRF > ASE R E % — U4 H
= Bk A BE 2 BR B i A 3
/WY #14,083,0009 7T,5,137,000
#IT -

15 B2 B8

il 52 5 36 F R BEIEAT H AR T & A 4R B 5¢
PB4 8T e R
B R 32 2 i KA B B 2 © R &R B
B IR DL 2R 51 AR 2 A B S Y AR I



Ao 7 T 25 R I i
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables as set out in note 17. The amounts of
trade receivables presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful
receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group is responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures are carried out to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue receivables. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and other receivables at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The management will remind
debtors for the amount of outstanding receivables and
the due dates of settlement for the purpose to advise them
settling the outstanding balances promptly.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation and
the Group has limited exposure to any single financial
institution.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on
its trade receivables. At 30 April 2014, 22% (2013: 15%) of
trade receivables is due from the Group’s largest customer
and 35% (2013: 35%) of trade receivables is due from the
other four largest customers of the Group. Continuous
subsequent settlements are received and there is no
historical default of payments by these customers.

Other than the concentration of credit risks on bank
balances and trade receivables, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The directors of the Company monitors
closely on the utilisation of bank and other borrowings.

6.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group relied on bank and other borrowings as
a significant source of liquidity. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
and to arrange additional banking facilities, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. In
case of any breach of the loan covenants noted, the Group
would communicate with the respective bank to discuss
the possibility of revising the relevant loan covenants and
arranging for waiver of immediate repayment.

At 30 April 2014, the Group has available unutilised
overdrafts and short-term bank borrowing facilities of
HK$8,405,000 (2013: HKS$22,696,000). In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group does not
have extensive needs of funds in short run and is readily
accessible to additional facilities from reputable banks.
Details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings at 30
April 2014 and 2013 are set out in note 22.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings, trust receipt loans and obligations
under finance leases with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks or financial institutions choosing
to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The following table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
or interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liability
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted net
inflows and outflows on those derivatives that require net
settlement. When the amount payable is not fixed, the cash
flows have been determined by reference to the projected
interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves existing at
the end of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis for
the Group’s derivative financial instruments are prepared
based on the contractual maturities assuming that the
potential knock-out is not triggered as the management
consider that the contractual maturities are essential
for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.

Liquidity tables
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Non-derivative financial liabilities &A1& 4 b £ 1%

Trade and other payables B 5 B LA B A+ 308 - 1,956 33,104 - 35,060 35,060

Trust receipt loans — variable rate 5 & U IE 8 3k — AT A % 4.00 698 - - 698 698

Bills payable JE T 4 - - 2,712 - 2,712 2,712

Accrued expenses It B - - 19,156 - 19,156 19,156

Bank borrowings - variable rate 8175 & — T F| R 2.50 38,937 - - 38,937 38,937

Borrowings from a director —AELER - 949 - - 949 949

Bank overdraft RITEX 5.25 212 - - 212 212
42,752 54,972 - 97,724 97,724

Derivative financial instrument fik &M TR

Structured foreign currency BRI SN R 1

forwards contract - net outflow & 41— i} - - 2,508 1,655 4,163 4,156

2013 e St

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEA 2k 4 i £ %

Trade and other payables B 5 B A RE A 20H = 4,393 16,304 - 21,197 21,197

Trust receipt loans — variable rate {5 sCUCHE &3 — 1T % 3.50 1,742 - - 1,742 1,742

Bills payable JE A 9% - - 1,968 - 1,968 1,968

Accrued expenses JE % - - 17,846 - 17,846 17,846

Bank borrowings - variable rate  SRAT 5 8 — AT & A % 2.60 13,182 = = 13,182 13,182

Borrowings from a director —HEHEE - 6,529 - - 6,529 6,529

Obligations under finance leases il B4 &5 4.00 - 55 - 55 54
25,846 36,073 - 62,519 62,518
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity tables (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of
the reporting period.

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of
bank borrowings and trust receipt loans with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments
set out in the loan agreements of which the relevant cash
flows are included in the “repayable on demand” time band
above. The amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were
greater than the amounts disclosed in the “repayable on
demand” time band in the maturity analysis above. Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that the bank borrowings and trust receipt loans
will be repaid after the reporting date in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements as follows:
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2014 e S 3

Bank borrowings — variable HRATIE R — AT B2 R 2.50 39,178 - 39,178 38,937

Trust receipt loans - variable {7 EHCHE &3 — T 8 4.00 700 - 700 698
39,878 - 39,878 39,635

2013 e SR

Bank borrowings — variable SRATIEE — AT 8 A % 2.60 13,238 - 13,238 13,182

Trust receipt loans — variable fa FEU IR Bk — nl 2 1 3% 3.50 1,745 - 1,745 1,742
14,983 = 14,983 14,924
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers less sales
returns and discounts.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?™), for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the location
of customers.

The customers of the Group are currently located in the
United States of America (the “USA”), Hong Kong,
Europe, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
Philippines, Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand and other
countries (which represented aggregation of other non-
reportable operating segments under HKFRS 8).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o s R B
For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 # % —ZF— U4 H =1 H L4
7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL 7. BEBEESBER ()
INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) &R (78)
Segment revenues and results Vg L €Y &S
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and DL £ A4 B e ] e i 00 PR 2 i SE R X E
results by reportable segment: AT
Turnover Segment results
BEMW Vgl E 3
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR RS DR WNAE -
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T#xL T# 7T T#xL T
The USA ES 61,938 45,323 4,236 1,802
Hong Kong e 2,709 2,475 295 110
Europe B 4,108 2,133 294 100
The PRC o 98,474 89,157 5,605 2,201
Philippines JEREE 26,240 21,739 1,819 1,140
Malaysia F AR 7 a1 17,429 12,753 1,208 641
Singapore BTN 3% 20,005 20,077 1,386 1,008
Thailand B 19,330 14,133 1,340 710
Reportable segment total A i 4540 R A 250,233 207,790 16,183 7,712
Other countries A [ 18,137 15,991 1,258 803
268,370 223,781 17,441 8,515

Eliminations ER (5,656) (6,601) - =
Group’s turnover and A AR B SR I

segment results 43 HB S 4R 262,714 217,180 17,441 8,515
Depreciation of property, L/ £

plant and equipment A T (13,256) (12,637)
Impairment loss on AFS A E R

investment WE 18 - (205)
Net gain on disposal of YR - AT K

property, plant and equipment s 2 U 25 ¥ A 118 114
Gain on disposal of AFS B AT

investment B& 2 It 6,983 3,318
Fair value (loss) gain on k& THZ

derivative financial 2B (B 1R)

instrument Wi #5 (3,679) 396
Unallocated interest income A B A A 5 9
Unallocated corporate expenses A3 it 4 3£ B 57 (4,180) (4,401)
Interest on bank and other ZEUI AR A A B

borrowings wholly repayable  fE#& Z 817 )

within five years HAt £ 82 FIB (733) (413)
Profit (loss) before taxation % B AT i A (5 18) 2,699 (5,304)
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% — & —H4EN A =1 H 14

TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

Included in the USA and the PRC reportable segments
are revenue from inter-segments of HKS$4,737,000 (2013:
HK$4,114,000) and HK$919,000 (2013: HK$2,487,000)
respectively.

The accounting policies of the operating segment are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment profit represents the profit from each segment
without allocation of corporate expenses which include
directors’ remuneration, depreciation expenses, impairment
loss on AFS investment, net gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, gain on disposal of AFS investment,
fair value (loss) gain on derivative financial instrument,
interest income on bank deposits and finance costs. This
is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BBy W E R ()

o R ()

g L&Y ES AE )

3B K w8 AT R A R A A Rk
% o Bl 54,737,000 o (. F — =4 ¢
4,114,000%% 75) $919,000%: T (& — =
4 1 2,487,000% 7T) ©

K o R 2 & wh UK B k3 A 2 A 4
B wt EUR AR R o g3 0 R A 4R AR B 45 o
w8 i A o T A 28 S P A 36 B S (A
HB) - PTEB S AT B SR 2
ERE - BB B sl 2 diis i
o A S BRE 2l - TR e
TRZARME (ER) Wit - AT Z A
SO DA Rl AR © I 2% A VR O3 iE K
KRBT ) £ E AR RE B R

e o

G ViR T S 4 IR 2 T 3 (A RO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets
The follows is an analysis of the Group’s assets by
reportable segment:

BBy W ER ()

53 B YR (40
0 W

AR A S T 95 43
57

2014 2013
R MR e S S
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T# T THoo
The USA FH 16,355 7,308
Hong Kong T 1,379 424
Europe [E1@7l] 526 379
The PRC Hp 28,466 21,195
Philippines FHE 7,891 2,746
Malaysia J5 2 74 5 2,802 2,135
Singapore N3 4,977 3,853
Thailand = 4,585 2,899
Reportable segment total A 3 15 o3 A 66,981 40,939
Other countries oA B % 4,058 2,708
71,039 43,647
Unallocated 47 Bie

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % ~ #2% K 5t 58,955 57,361
Inventories & 35,168 24,680
Bank balances and cash BRAT &S B LBl 4 9,600 8,683
AFS investment At R - 4,787

Advance payment for TEEY - HE K

acquisition of property, R 2 B

plant and equipment 533 1,094
Other unallocated assets Hoh R oy T & B 3,836 3,605
Consolidated total assets HEERESME 179,131 143,857

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, all assets are
allocated to operating segments other than property,
plant and equipment, advance payment for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment, inventories, deposits
and prepayments, AFS investment, derivative financial
instrument and bank balances and cash. No segment
information on liabilities is presented as such information
is not regularly reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B B s R B
For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4
7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL 7. BEBERBER (H)

INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information regularly provided to the CODM

5 W BB (A1)
RS0 v A PSR B A ] B A O
but not included in the measurement of segment result AR A 4 56 =2 0 b 4y 38 ¥ 0t
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

W B R
2014 2013
R —WAE R AR
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
T#x T-#s 70
The USA ES 2,852 2,352
Hong Kong e 142 150
Europe e 206 123
The PRC H 4,913 5,059
Philippines FEHE 1,334 1,271
Malaysia F5 2K 74 B 886 746
Singapore 1B 1,017 1,174
Thailand % 983 827
Reportable segment total A i 1520 R A 12,333 11,702
Other countries oA B R 923 935
13,256 12,637

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is allocated WIS MERS R AR 2 I AR YR & ]
43 0 i R A S L B 4 e & RT R

turnover generated in respective reportable segments. #H o

to reportable segments according to the proportion of

Geographical information

Hb I %5 B}

AL 2 B B E (S L AR T
instruments by geographical location of the assets a2 P A b 8 A oy o A P B R A
amounted to HK$59,488,000 (2013: HK$58,455,000) which 59,488,000% 7T (= F — = 4F : 58,455,000
are located in the PRC. WG o

The Group’s non-current assets other than financial
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 2 B B A W

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 # %

B —UAE A =+ H REE

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total
follows:

Customer A — the PRC
Customer B — the USA

sales of the Group are as

EFH—HE
HFo—%H

BBy W ER ()

AWEREFZER
R REL I 4 JBE A 7 42 T 8 45 A H10% L | 2
R F

2014 2013
— L S

HKS$’000 HK$’ 000

T#x T

- 28,325

51,510 36,043

Revenue from this customer in current year contributed

less than 10% of the total sales of the Group.

Information about major products

The Group is solely engaged in the manufacture and sale

of leadframes, including integrated circuit leadframes,

heatsinks and stiffeners.

* AAETEAS F BL 5 2 W Ak 7 5 1 A
AR AE10% o

A7 B 2R g Z B R
A 4 T {0 O B T AR AE - AR
BB G| SRAE - BSOS o

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS J il e A DA e G il i 2 % s 4
AND LOSSES
2014 2013
ZR—WAE —E =4
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#x THs T
Other income 3l B A
Sales of by-products and scrap Bl = & 5 J8% Bl 5 & 5,290 2,924
Interest income FLE WA 5 9
Sundry income MeTE A 120 100
5,415 3,033
Other gains and losses 3 B 2% B s 1
Net gain on disposal of property, Y3 ~ #4F K&
plant and equipment Bd i P ETREE ] 118 114
Gain on disposal of AFS B R 2 g
investment 6,983 3,318
7,101 3,432
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok o B 25 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% — & —H4EN A =1 H 14

9. TAXATION BE B

2014 2013
e UL S R =4
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000
T#L T T

The charge comprises: AL

Current tax: AR HNBL I -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Hp R A 2E BT AR B 1,041 811

Underprovision in prior year: AR AN R

Other jurisdiction H thy ) 3% 4 3 =
Deferred tax (Note 25) AEBLIE (ff7E25) - =
1,044 811

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions are calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Y M 15 50 T AR A 19 11 4 B2 2 Al w R R

s B FE B 216.5%5T A -

P 74 4 S 7 4R B S SR B AR 2
filit HE R Ja ] > I 08 kA o AU AS BLAE

1 A o

AR b B A S T AR BLIE (TSR A BiE 1)
BTGB E G B - B =TT /\4E
—H— B > o B 2 ] B S 25% o

SOt ) 3 M i 7 A 2 0 I 4 AR B ) 3 [

ZBIABRGE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

9. TAXATION (continued) 9.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

BeI (40
AR A BB IS U B 4 1R B 2 T
3.2 BT 9 BR B AR R O HR) 2 BHBR T -

(loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

90

2014 2013
R —WAE e e
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#x T
Profit (loss) before taxation B il ¥ A1 (5 48) 2,699 (5,304)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax & 7& ¥ A3 BB %16.5%
rate of 16.5% w2 Bl IA 445 (875)
Tax effect of expenses not AN AT A B 52
deductible for tax purpose 2B 295 356
Tax effect of income not taxable #ZHFEBL Y A
for tax purpose B R (1,228) (642)
Tax effect of non-allowable ik SE 5 2 A AT 4 e 48
losses of offshore operation Z B 471 496
Effect of different tax rates of W[ % & 2 K[ i K 2
operation in the PRC 2 1,041 811
Underprovision in respect of A EFEZBERL
prior year 3 -
Tax effect of tax losses not R T RR BT e 48 2 B 55 i 2
recognised 142 656
Tax effect of utilisation of tax  # fl LA R B BLB 40 2
losses previously not BTS2
recognised (60) -
Others HoAth (65) 9
Tax charge for the year A A A JE S 1,044 811
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 T 25 R I i

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 # % %

PUAEDY H = B R AR

10. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 10. AAEERA O H)
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging AAEE A (B Bk (GFA) F3IIHE
(crediting) the following items: H :
2014 2013
g R4
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#xT Tt
Salaries, wages and other staff — F4 - L& & HAh & T4 F|
benefits 71,542 58,566
Retirement benefits scheme B R R FT 3 AL 3K
contribution 2,975 2,453
Total staff costs (Note i) KR B A (B aED) 74,517 61,019
Repair and maintenance expenses 15 & i 7 B 52 10,786 9,467
(Reversal of) write down of (3 [0 kA7 B2 (FE AL
inventories (included in raw A 6 BT FE )
materials and consumables (Mt 7Eii)
used) (Note ii) (659) 302
Reversal of impairment for bad 3% I 2 Ul (i 475 7] 15 %8
and doubtful debts, net (20) 4)
Auditor’s remuneration 127 S il P 4 1,000 980
Operating lease rentals in respect #F 2 8 fH 41 4
of premises (Note iii) (Mt 7tiii) 7,427 9,012
Notes: Vi

ii.

iii.

Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff
costs.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, certain slow moving
inventories which were previously written down have
been utilised and the original costs of these inventories
are considered recoverable, resulted in the reversal of
allowance for inventories.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Group and the
landlord of a leased premise located at Dongguan City
of the PRC agreed to early terminate the lease agreement
signed on 8 September 2000 with a lease term up to
year 2021. Accordingly, the accrued rent amounting to
HKS$2,765,000 in respect of unamortised incentive arising
from the rent free period arrangement under such lease
agreement was credited to profit or loss and included
hereof.

i M O R LA R B AR o

ii. R E - FE AN H =+ HIEFE
S H EL IO 2 T e A B A A T
AE A7 B 2 TR UG LA T AR 4 ] LA ]

PRI 435 [ 77 B 458 £ -

ii.  AEEZF-WEMA=1+HIEFE
7 5 [ BV T B RS T AL
XFECFRRAK LR ZFRRFEIA

N BT T AR DR

—F G

IS - W > ZIEAE R SRET
Z AR 22 Bk P 7S AR 2 SR i G 4 B 1Y AR
B E TR 422,765,000 70 B 48 5H A HH 23

ALFFAAIEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o s R B
For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 # % —ZF— U4 H =1 H L4
11. DIVIDEND 11. B2
The directors of the Company do not recommend the RANFEEANEFZRIRMSEE - F—IU4E
payment of a dividend for the year ended 30 April 2014 WMA=Z+HIEFEZRE (ZF =4
(2013: nil). ) o
12. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 12. #HBEAN OEH)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per ENINEIE PEWN RN & TNYIE: B vl
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based (K18) J5 3% 1 5 g st &

on the following data:

2014 2013
e Sk S e e s
Profit (loss) for the year T LARHER g B A A T
attributable to the owners WA O 18) <
of the Company for the A0S F A N AL
purposes of basic and diluted A B N A (5 1)
earnings (loss) per share HK$1,655,000% ¢  (HKS$6,115,000% Jt)
Number of ordinary shares for | DA gt 58 & It 3 A K
the purpose of calculating R (18 2
basic and diluted earnings o8 i H
(loss) per share 767,373,549 767,373,549
The computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share does By A AR N ) B R RE AT A A E
not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding — U4 ZE — AR H = H R E A
share options as the exercise prices of the share options of J~F-3 T8 > SR A R A R (RS 1R)
the Company are higher than the average market price per Ry Sl AR R A 8 ) ) AR AT (2 B e E S A T
share for the years ended 30 April 2014 and 2013. fifi o
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o B 2 AR Mk

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% % U4 A =+ H L4

13.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2013:
five) directors were as follows:

WP R EEARARMAERA
P

R Y E Ty NNk

TSNS NG (ZFE =4 i) &
HZMEWT

014 “F-WA
Fees e 135 - 200 164 120 151 151 129 1,050
Other emoluments Him4
Salaries and other e R REA
benefits - 1,485 - - - - - - 1,485
Retirement benefit BRI
schemes contribution - 4 - - - - - - 4
135 1,559 200 164 120 151 151 129 2,609

2013 e X 2
Fees ik 135 - 500 375 300 1,310
Other emoluments H A4
Salaries and other benefits Ha R EbEA = 1,485 = = = 1,485
Retirement benefit schemes B MRk A A5 B {3
contribution - 74 - - - 74
135 1,559 500 375 300 2,869
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13.

Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

i. Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex
retired as independent non-executive directors with effect
from the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on
23 September 2013.

ii. Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson resigned as independent
non-executive director on 7 October 2013.

iii. Mr. How Sze Ming and Mr. Lee Kwok Wan were
appointed as independent non-executive directors with
effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting
held on 23 September 2013.

iv. Mr. Chan Kin Fung, Phil was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 24 October 2013.

Mr. Li Tung Lok (“Mr. Li”) is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosure above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company as
approved by the board of directors on the recommendation
of the remuneration committee, are having regarded
to their individual duties and responsibilities with the
Company, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market conditions.

During the years ended 30 April 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

For the year ended 30 April 2014, Mr. Li waived
emoluments of approximately HK$12,065,000 (2013:
HKS$12,065,000). Other than this, there was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration for the years ended 30 April 2014
and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 2 AR Mk

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 % & —U4ENH =1 H (L4

13. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. #B R TLEHALGKABMNE RE

EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’ 4 (%)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS i H 4

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals HAEREHMALEHE -2 (CF =
included one (2013: one) executive director of the — &) ANFHATES - HM &2 570 b
Company, whose emolument is included above. The o HERM A (2B — =4 UL) fem
aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2013: four) [N ol K (N

highest paid individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits ¥4 K HAh A 75 3,576 4,536
Retirement benefits schemes HRARAE A 5B 3K
contribution 108 107
3,684 4,643
Their emoluments were within the following bands: 45 2 B4 A F B AL A -

HKS$nil - HK$1,000,000 Z It — 1,000,000 7T 2
HKS$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%57C — 1,500,000 7T 2 3
4 4

During the years ended 30 April 2014 and 2013, no MEE ZFE—UER —F— ZFPH =+
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the H kAR B > A 80 AT o] A5 sl e A 7
five highest paid individuals (including directors and HAZFE AL (5 EHE L EE) 2
employees) as an inducement to join the Group or as & AE BN AR N\ 2 N ek A B A
compensation for loss of office. & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 2 Ak Mk

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% % U4 A =+ H L4

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. P93 - BROS B Bt i

COST JRA
At 1 May 2012 WoE—-—#LA—H 43,604 14,375 2,751 558,021 53,802 - 672,553
Exchange adjustments [ bt % = 1 = = = = 1
Additions RE 915 347 = 1,392 5,666 7,348 15,668
Disposal i - (54) - (1,772) - = (1,826)
At 30 April 2013 MEZ-=£ENA=1+A 44519 14,669 2,751 557,641 59,468 7,348 686,396
Exchange adjustments [ ji % - &) - - - - 3
Additions RE 716 246 - 6,495 5,141 2,519 15,117
Disposal i - - - (2,974) - - (2,974)
At 30 April 2014 BREZ—-MWAENA=TH 45235 14912 2,751 561,162 64,609 9,867 698,536
ACCUMULATED LR

DEPRECIATION AND  #fi i

IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 May 2012 W_Z—-_FRA—H 36,867 13,482 1,786 526,937 38,687 = 617,759
Exchange adjustments [ Ji 7% - 1 = = - - 1
Provided for the year 4R [ 5 1,304 471 319 7,408 3,129 = 12,637
Eliminated on disposals i & FF{E - (54) = (1,308) = = (1,362)
At 30 April 2013 RZZE-=FNA=+H 38171 13,906 2,105 533,037 41,816 = 629,035
Exchange adjustments [ J0 5% - 3 - - - - 3
Provided for the year — A4E B 1,219 263 319 7,608 3,847 - 13,256
Eliminated on disposals ;& 44 - - - (2,707) - - (2,707)
At 30 April 2014 REZ-WAENAZTH 39,39 14,166 2424 537,938 45,663 - 639,581
CARRYING VALUES  Ji fii
At 30 April 2014 BREZ-WENA=TH 5845 746 7 23,224 18,946 9,867 58,955
At 30 April 2013 REZZ-=FNA=+H 6348 763 646 24,604 17,652 7,348 57,361
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14.

Ao 7 T 25 R I i

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Note: During the year ended 30 April 2014, the addition of
construction in progress included HK$561,000 (2013:
HK$4,417,000) which was transferred from advance
payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful
lives:

Leasehold improvements 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 — 8 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Plant and machinery 6 — 12 years
Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years

At 30 April 2013, the Group had property, plant and
equipment with carrying value of HK$294,000 which
were held under finance leases and were pledged to secure
finance leases granted to the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company conducted a review of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and determined that no impairment
for property, plant and equipment is required.

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment of the Group have been determined on the basis
of value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering a one-year period with a discount
rate of 14.6% (2013: 14.6%). Cash flows beyond this one-
year period are extrapolated using a 5% growth rate in the
second year and a zero growth rate for the remaining years
of the projection period.

14.

Yook - B4R BBt (1)

et o REREE-TAEN A =+ B IREE
ERETIEZAEBOFEAREYE B
o e S 2 BER561,0008 08 (—F—=
4 1 4,417,000%8) °

bty - M AR s TE H UG DL AR A 2
HE$5 DU W] AR SRR T R

GENEE/E 2 84F
AR~ B Rkt 54F — 84F
R SAF
L Y& 64F — 124F
TR~ T H A H R A 64F

RZE-=FNA=1H > AL EREE
#5294,000 T 2 W3 - AR BB R AR B
AT R A I C R B R T AL Z
il AH A

TR I AS RS - AN R OB AL
2 W3 AR SR MET AL AR
R 5 Tk ) 3 ~ B BB A R

AL B - B R 2 kel S FE T
HR 5 i (B 2 w0507 88 7 o IGRTAR X
fifi FH AR B 5 B R AL oE 2 B BOTE A B 4
LB TR o R P BT BRI 2 — AR I ER T
14.6% (& —=4F 1 14.6%) Z R - i
UL — W HERB TS FHRER
FyS% M TERN ) AR FE R R A%
fEHEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4E#§

97



98

B 2 B B A W

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong, at fair value

15.

T LT RAZSE  HARE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

af it i £ B B
2014 2013
e L= e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T
- 4,787

At 30 April 2013, the AFS investment was stated at fair
value, which was determined based on bid prices quoted in
an active market. The AFS investment was fully disposed
of during the year ended 30 April 2014.

Particulars of the investee company at 30 April 2014 and
2013 are as follows:

Place of
Name of company incorporation Principal activities
EE ik R oL 3 LERH

MelcoLot Limited Cayman Islands Provision of lottery—

(“MelcoLot”) e 5 related technologies,
MEREARAR systems and solutions
(THERY)) 3R AL TR A B B
ES WSS

MelcoLot is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, the fair value of the
AFS investment increased by HKS$2,825,000 before the
respective dates of disposal and were recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, 7,144,745 (2013:
9,944,000) shares of the investee company’s issued share
capital were disposed in several batches by the Group,
resulted in a gain on disposal of HK$6,983,000 (2013:
HK$3,318,000) recycled into profit or loss.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

R F—ZFNHA=TH > Al R E
2 % B T 3 P HROE M 2 2 A A E B
IR o M EREC B E - F 4D
H=E=FHIEFEREHHE -

WAE A R — AR — = A
A=1+HZ#BWT :

Proportion of
nominal value of

Class of issued share capital
shares held held by the Group
P fi 4 7R 4 1 i b
JBe By 2 30 T4 B A i L B
2014 2013
“Z-mE CZ-ZF
Ordinary shares - 0.3%
T i

BRI W S T A AR L A ] e

ABEZF-NENH =+ H LR > 7]
R E 2~ A EC AR & H
#712,825,00095 78 > 3l 1A A 2 T i i ke
8 B 4 AL R T

REE FE—ENA =+ HIEFEE
245 [ Ay B T 144,745 (B — =
1 9,944,000/8) #k #E A A B AT A
WA o PR AR 2 H B U £56,983,000
W (. F— =4 3,318,000% 7T) B 1A
B 15 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

(continued)
During the six months ended 31 October 2012, due to the

prolong decline in the fair value of the AFS investment,
a further impairment loss of approximately HK$205,000
had been recognised and reclassified into profit or loss.
Subsequent to the recognition of impairment loss during
the six months ended 31 October 2012, the fair value
of the AFS investment has increased by HK$6,929,000
and were recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve during
the year ended 30 April 2013.

15.

af it A B R ()

MWHEZE—"4AF T H =1 —HIEAM
Ho> Rt ERE 2 A RERFHET
Bk > W e R A — 25 6 (E s 18 49205,000
WonI A HE B A AR R o N E
F— A+ =+ — B kR A R
HEE%E > MRE Z2—=FNHA=1H
S B T I L T = = /N K (=) |
6,929,000%5 7T > A % HoAth 4 7 Uk 25 fE 7R S
A AL A R 5T o

16. INVENTORIES 16. #H&

2014 2013

e S E S TR AR

HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

T#L Tt

Raw materials and consumables J&#1 ¥} J 7 #& & 22,859 17,257
Work in progress 2 8,050 4,601
Finished goods GOy 4,259 2,822
35,168 24,680

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/ 17. S5 B Jo i WE e ok 4% 4 % T
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS WE el
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ¥ 5 B 3 b HE 0k

2014 2013

e S L E S TR AR

HK$’000 HKS$’ 000

T#L Tt

Trade receivables & T RE S R TH 70,604 43,931

Less: Allowance for bad and W RIEAR B

doubtful debts (128) (411)

70,476 43,520

Others receivables A JE i K IE 563 244
71,039 43,764
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Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to
90 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period:

17.

B 5 B JC fib KE WOk 4 4 B B
fF sk B (48)

KM T 5 EF 2585 T30%90
F o TR 100 T 5 S 5 M U T
e S M 2 5 00 2 51 B A
o -

2014 2013

—®— WL —E =5

HKS$’ 000 HK$’000

T#x TH#TT

Within 30 days 30H A 30,794 19,506
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 25,090 14,835
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H 13,115 6,774
Over 90 days 90H DL E 1,477 2,405
70,476 43,520

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
apply an internal credit assessment policy to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and define credit limits
by customer. Management closely monitors the credit
quality of trade receivables. Included in the Group’s trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HKS$22,021,000 (2013: HK$13,466,000) which
are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss, as there is no
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
still considered recoverable based on historical payment
experience. The Group does not hold any collateral or
credit enhancements over these balances.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

A B2 AT T8 % 5 > AS 4R [ AT BB
G RERERBUR LR IR B P 2 (5 B Rl
HiTH&EF 2GR - BHIEE I EE
B EBKIEZ FEEEE - REHE 5 K
W TR &5 R o B9 i T A4 22,021,000
WG (& — =4F ¢ 13,466,000%% 7T) A )
HHE I G IE > HMEEE R
S 4T Ak B > HLAR SRR AT AR BR > +%
SR IEAT A RR A AT i I R UG AN R [ Sl A
S 0 WA B (B R R o A AE
S 8 5 AL S 5 A R AT AT AT S R SO R 15
B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 % & —U4ENH =1 H (L4

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors,
presented based on due date of respective invoice, which
are past due but not impaired:

17.

B 5y B 3Ll W B0k L 4 B B
i KB (41)

$U5) Be 30 fib M Bk I (48

LA 40 0 0 2 525 O 0 4 SFL L
5 5 00 525 R AT T

Within 90 days 90H A 21,972 12,861
Over 90 days 90H L |k 49 605
22,021 13,466

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables which are past due but not impaired are
generally recoverable.

The following is the movement in the allowance for bad
and doubtful debts:

MRIEAS S IR R4S BR > — ] DAl [Pl 238
Sy (R0 I e el A 2 5 o B WSRO

SRR 2 E BT

At beginning of year A AEH) 411 516
Impairment losses recognised SRS EEN Fi! 36 132
Reversal of impairment for bad 2 3% i 13 5 2~ % 1]

and doubtful debts (56) (136)
Amounts written off during A4 B PROR ] i (]

the year as uncollectible i 1 85 2 = 3 (263) (101)
At end of year AR £ 128 411
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Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group has arrangement with a bank to transfer to
the bank its contractual rights to receive cash flows from
certain trade receivables. The arrangement is made through
transferring those trade receivables, without discounting, to
the bank on a full recourse basis. Specifically, if the trade
receivables are not paid after the due date, the bank has
the right to request the Group to pay the unsettled balance.
As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and
rewards relating to these trade receivables, it continues to
recognise the full carrying amount of the trade receivables
amounting approximately HK$51,619,000 (2013:
HK$23,948,000) and has recognised the cash received on
the transfer as collateralised bank borrowings (see note 22)
of approximately HK$38,937,000 (2013: HK$13,182,000)
as at 30 April 2014.

These financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

17.

B 5 B 3G fib HE ok 4 4 % B
fF sk B (48)

il S 4 b %

A [ B — [ ERAT R T e PE > DA i
BT 25 M B 1 B A B A RE
FHE T 5% R AT o sZ L HE BRIk R B
FME ) SRAT I (N IERE ) SR S
FEMCR AT AE o FRRIL2 > Me%5 B 5 I
Wik TE NI R R 20 ) B AR A > AR AT A%
A REE R ASE S AT RAEAT A5 8 o B A
45 3 3 4 e B 5% 5 " D) M i K TR A B
PR 2R R B B el it > A L& — DU AR Y H
=+ H > HABLHERY SRR 2
HE T {E 4751,619,000% ¢ (& — =
23,948,000%% 75) - 37 B PRI a8 i i B AY
Bl MERRAE A IR ERAT 58 (RLHfEE22) 49
38,937,000 74 (& — =4F 1 13,182,000
W T) ©

% R E M A A R 2 R
BABS AR DLAR S B

2014 2013
e Sk S e e
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
T# T TH# 7T
Carrying amount of transferred £ #3 & & 2 IR (H
assets 51,619 23,948
Carrying amount of associated  AH B £ & 2 i i (&
liabilities (38,937) (13,182)
12,682 10,766
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS e 4 B WA KB

Included in the Group’s deposits is an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$390,000 (2013: HK$750,000)
denominated in RMB, the foreign currency of respective
group entities.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

A 4E [ 2 2 4 P A5G A8 %E £9390,000% JC
(T F—=4E:750,000%78) Z FHIELLA
M O R 42 BB 38 2 AN (A -
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT

Derivative financial (liability)
asset:

Structured foreign currency MR E L
forwards contract

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. fik&@I R

2014 2013
N A
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T# T Tt
(4,156) 46

For the year ended 30 April 2014, the Group entered into
two RMB/USD net-settled structured foreign currency
forwards contracts (the “Contract A” and the “Contract
B”) with a bank in order to manage the Group’s currency
risk.

The aggregate notional amount of the Contract A is
USD14,400,000 with 18 equal monthly settlements
commencing from May 2014 without considering the
potential knock out feature which may result in early
termination of the contract. For the transactions that
are going to settle in the first 10 months of the contract
period, the Group is required to sell USD and buy RMB
at a strike price of RMB6.08 to USD1.00. There will be
no settlement when the spot rate at respective settlement
date is within the range from RMB6.08 to RMB6.18 for
USD1.00. For the transactions in remaining contract
term, the Group is required to sell USD and buy RMB
at a strike price of RMB6.055 to USD1.00. There will be
no settlement when the spot rate at respective settlement
date is within RMB6.055 to RMB6.15 for USD1.00.
The Contract A contains a knock out feature where the
accumulative monthly gain by the Group from it has
reached RMB296,000 on any monthly settlement date, the
remaining monthly settlement of the Contract A would be
automatically terminated on that date.

IBE_F-NENA=+HILFE > &
A5 0 B — [ SRAT RIS W N R W EIT A
FHEAHERAEEINEENSH TE4
HIRIEHZ]) > DU A 4 [ i B

B o

B A ) A 4% 26 4 B £514,400,0009E T
B E— A A H BGRB8 A
H &5 A F! S AT RE LA A AT A
1E 2 VEAEBUH R B o BN A A B 10
A &EH 2 2G0T ASEEEE N R
6.0851.00F L 2 AT EE H E L KEA
B o i A AR BR &5 5T H 0 22 BB R
JE N R H6.08F N R H6.185.1.003%
T AEN > QAT EEE - ek N A4
NZ 505 » A4 B i A K ¥6.055
SL1.00E T2 AT EE B E T LEAAR
e o il A B A L 1A 2 B0 B A
AR #6.055%8 N RH6.155.1.003 70 2 #i
EN> IAEEEE - 48— HIUH
RG> BN A g =T 2 BEHE A
Wi g 7E AT AT B 0 IO &5 55 H B 3 N RVIE
296,0001RF > & #)H 2 8%~ 4 B &5 H AR %
HEBKIE -
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18.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (continued)

The aggregate notional amount of the Contract B is
USD14,940,000 with 18 equal monthly settlements
commencing September 2013 without considering the
potential knock out feature which may result in early
termination of the contract. The Group is required to
sell USD and buy RMB at a strike price of RMB6.24
to USD1.00. There will be no settlement when the
spot rate at respective settlement date is within the
range from RMB6.24 to RMB6.34 for USD1.00. The
Contract B contains a knock out feature where the
accumulative monthly gain by the Group from it has
reached RMB298.800 on any monthly settlement date, the
remaining monthly settlement of the Contract B would be
automatically terminated on that date.

For the year ended 30 April 2013, the Group entered
into RMB/USD net-settled structured foreign currency
forwards contract (the “Contract C”) with a bank in
order to manage the Group’s currency risk. The aggregate
notional amount of the Contract C is USD15,120,000 with
18 equal monthly settlements commencing from April 2013
without considering the potential knock out feature which
may result in early termination of the contract. The Group
is required to sell USD and buy RMB at a strike price
of RMB6.265 to USD1.00. There will be no settlement
when the spot rate at respective settlement date is within
the range from RMB6.265 to RMB6.385 for USD1.00.
The Contract C contains a knock out feature where the
accumulative monthly gain by the Group from it has
reached RMB210,000 on any monthly settlement date, the
remaining monthly settlement of the Contract C would be
automatically terminated on that date.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, the knock out
features of the Contract B and Contract C were triggered
and thus they were early terminated.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

18.

2 gk TR (4)

B W) R 3 4B 1514,940,0009E T
H F— = JLH BG40 R 1884 A
A MG ASFE K n] BEE A AR H A Lk
ZIBTERUE R Eh - AL JEIR N K6.24
S1.00E G2 ATHERE B E T AEAAR
e o il A AH B 45 B 3 2 B30 B R R R
N R #6.24%F N R %6.3451.003 jt 2 #i
EX o> AIAEEER - A4 08— THIUH
FREh > BMEASSEE G 2B 2 2t e A
Wi R AEAT T A H A5 B H A ) N R
298,8001KF » &) 4 2 8% T A &5 HA i %
HEBKIE -

REE - F—Z4FENH =+ HIEFEE > &
S B — R ERATRT oL — M AR W £ T
DIVFBEG BRI R A8 T8
KN o DIEHAEENEWEK - 54
VA Y 48 44 36 4 % 5 15,120,00035 96 > H
F— =M H IR0 B8 T A 4
S TS FE R T RE AR ECA AR AT AR 2
T A€ U Fr B o AR AR [ ZE He N IR 56,265
SL1.00E L2 THEEEETCKEAANR
W o A A AR B A5 T H U 2 B A R RO
AN R #6.265% N R #6.3855.1.003 J&. 2
RN AIAGER - SHONE S THR
THERE > BRI | | KBS 2 Betd
H i #5 AE AT AR A R 455 B 2] R W
210,000F » & &I Z 88 & H &5 B0 %
H A B &L -

RBE-F-NEMA=+HIFE B
IS KRB IR BOHRR B > lEH
LB E H)N BB AT A R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% % U4 A =+ H L4

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT (continued)

DISCLOSURES — OFFSETTING FINANCIAL
ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group has entered into the International Swaps
and Derivatives Association Master Netting Agreements
(“ISDA Agreements”) with a bank, which is also the
bank in arranging invoice factoring set out in note 17, in
respect of its dealings in the structured foreign currency
forwards contracts. The below recognised financial assets
and financial liabilities are not offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the ISDA Agreements are
in place with a right of set off only in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy so that the Group currently
has no legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts. Details are set out below.

At 30 April 2014

18.

i S TR ()
e 55 — 41K B0 < T O i £

AL B A AN I A 4 2 B
B — [ ERAT LR A L BRI RE 17T R 2
eI > BRAT) T S0 B MR R A A T
L Yoh & 485 B AL 5 1w (1 B P 0 B AT A
THEEEWakl) o BT L 2 B B i
B AT A T L 6 W s B A 1S 80 E 3
REEEEL) - AR E ZEN o A
42 [ [ i I SV S B M R AR 4
8 > WU 9 2 R A Ml G N el A
RS 0 1A 5 A A TS IR D R A B o A B
AR -

REZ—-NENA=1H

Recognised financial assets: £ 58 4 il & 7% ¢
— Bank balances —ERAT 45 Bk 6,350 - (4,156) 2,194
— Trade receivables — B 5 BB IA 51,619 (38,937) - 12,682
Total st 57,969 (38,937) (4,156) 14,876
Recognised financial liabilities: £ 7% 4 Al & i
— Structured foreign — G5 TSN
currency forwards mMAH
contract (4,156) - 4,156 -
— Collateralised bank — A AR
borrowings 58 (38,937) 38,937 - -
Total A5t (43,093) 38,937 4,156 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 2 Ak Mk

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% % U4 A =+ H L4

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 18. fiZk&m TR (4)
INSTRUMENT (continued)
DISCLOSURES — OFFSETTING FINANCIAL Pl 55 — NG AN Sk % A R ka0 ()
ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(continued)
At 30 April 2013 W2 =4 =1H

Recognised financial assets: . FErd 4 @l & = -

— Structured foreign — KRS
currency forwards m=HAEH
contract 46 - - 46
— Bank balances —SRATEEBR 2,323 = = 2,323
— Trade receivables — & 5 BENSCIE 23,948 (13,182) = 10,766
Total RN 26,317 (13,182) - 13,135

Recognised financial liabilities: T 58 < Fil & f&
— Collateralised bank — A IS RAT
borrowings [EREs (13,182) 13,182 - -

106 QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

20.

Ao 7 T 25 R I i

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% — & —H4EN A =1 H 14

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/BANK 19. BATHBRRBLE HATE K
OVERDRAFT
BANK BALANCES AND CASH WATH bR Bl &
Bank balances held by the Group comprised of bank A ME A 2 RAT A5 B 0L IS 1R AR A R
deposits which carried prevailing market interest rates 0.01JH F£0.38J8H (& — =4 : 0.01E &
ranging from 0.01% to 0.38% (2013: 0.01% to 0.35%) per 0.35)8) Z BAT AR5 B ERITAE 3K »
annum. The bank deposits have the original maturity of SRATAA K 2 R B B A =R H o E IRy
three months or less. fH] o
Included in the Group’s bank balances and cash is an AL BITH GBSO S LL
aggregate amount of approximately HK$442,000 (2013: 442,000 T (=& — =4 : 1,815,000 7T)
HK$1,815,000) denominated in RMB, the foreign currency DA R CRH BR 42 1B BB 2 A1) BT -
of respective group entities.
BANK OVERDRAFT WATE X
Bank overdraft carries interest at market rate of 5.25% SRATHE AR FS525E (K — = 4F © 4%)
(2013: nil) per annum. ZmiGRRGE -
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 20. B 5 K IALHEA KED RIS R
DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES - gl
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables B S MEAT 30T 7 S ) T 4 R R e B 2L
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the W25 Z HRE At T
reporting period:
2014 2013
R —WAE TR AR
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T#T Tt
Trade payables & 5 BEAT R IE
Within 30 days 30H A 6,484 4,494
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 5,720 1,821
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H 2,762 1,397
Over 90 days 90H DA E 7,293 4,406
22,259 12,118
Other payables L Ath 8 AT 3 IE 12,801 9,079
35,060 21,197

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4E3# 107



108

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.

21.

B 2 B B A W

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 20. BBy B i HE AT 3K 0 DL B A K
DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES WS E O ()
(continued)
The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30 & 2 E WA F30E90H
to 90 days.
Included in the Group’s trade and other payables and AL E 2 B 5y T Ho A RE A 3k IEH DL K RE H
accrued expenses are aggregate carrying amounts of RSG5 B £117,707,000% 06 (— %
approximately HK§$17,707,000 (2013: HKS$11,216,000) — Z4F 1 11,216,000%5 76) £213,819,000%5
and HKS$13,819,000 (2013: HK$8,956,000) denominated JC (& — =4 1 8,956,000% 7T ) J& PA AR
in RMB, the foreign currency of respective group entities, W OH 46 18 BT B 2 S ) (A -
respectively.
TRUST RECEIPT LOANS AND BILLS 21. £ wCWBCBE £k B BE A SR 95
PAYABLE
2014 2013
S®oewg Eog
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T#T THs T
Trust receipt loans IERAVE $E 698 1,742
Bills payable JREASH S48 2,712 1,968
3,410 3,710

At the end of the reporting period, bills payable are non-
interest bearing and aged within 30 days.

Trust receipt loans carry interest at effective interest rates
(which are also equal to contracted interest rates) ranging
from 3.5% to 4.0% (2013: 3.0% to 4.0%) per annum and are
matured within 60 days but contain a repayable on demand
clause.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

T U (] 45 RO > AT SRR R FEE
RS 7530 H LATAY

& LR AN A3 S E4. 08 (Z
F— =4 3.0E £4.0H) Z FHEA X (IR
MR AL ) 5HE > SR 60 H k21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 T 25 R I i

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 # % %

PUAEDY H = B R AR

22. BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS

22, BT B LAl A £E

2014 2013
e UL S R =4
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000
T#L T T
Collateralised bank borrowings A #& 48R 175 & (M 7ta)
(Note a) 38,937 13,182
Borrowings from a director — B EFGE (M 7ED)
(Note b) 949 6,529
39,886 19,711
Carrying amount repayable: JRRE A 7 2k T 2 W THT M
On demand or within one year 78 % % 3K sl —4F A 1 2 39,886 19,711
Included in amount shown FEABI A I B & A T
under current liabilities: Z A
Carrying amount of bank R — N E B s
borrowings that are repayable AT B B SR R R
within one year but contain a Z SRATE B 2 MR T B
repayment on demand clause 38,937 13,182

Notes:

The collateralised bank borrowings are bank advance from
the factoring of the Group’s trade receivables and carry
interest at USD trade finance rate minus 0.5% per annum
and contain a repayable on demand clause.

The borrowings are advanced from Mr. Li, a director and
a shareholder of the Company with significant influence
over the Company, and are interest-free and unsecured.
Subsequent to 30 April 2014, Mr. Li has agreed not to
demand the repayment in full or in part of the loans due
from the Group on or before 20 June 2015. The Group has
voluntarily repaid HK$5,580,000 to Mr. Li during the year
ended 30 April 2014.

a. A HC AR ERAT £ B8 7 SR AR AR I ) B i
AR P AT 2 SRAT R A B SR
JCH 5 A A 280, S 2 AR A FREHE
37 HL AL 5 7T B I 25K A5 2 fh K o

b. ERMEANFAAAEREEN AL
EER 53 & et LN R NS
LA o R F—PUEE A =+ H A& &
SEAECRABAGR -F —HEANAST
F 2 i 2R AR S T B T 4 R 2 2
WEROY R - AEHE R E N
A = A H RS EE B A e A (R R
5,580,000% 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% & —U4EM A =+ H (L4

23. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 23. WEMBRYE

LEASES

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Group has certain REE —FE-=FWH=+HIEFE > A
plant and machinery and motor vehicles under finance AL 2 T SRkl DA SRR A LA
leases. The lease term was 3 years and the title of the leased FHA) o FHA £ A = 47 10 FlL 65 & 2 2 fT A
assets would be transferred to the Group at the end of the 76 T AE A 5% &6 N O T A AE [ o FilEFHLA
lease term. The interest rates underlying the obligations FRYE Z AR BRI R A & &4 B W18 2 & &
under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates 4.0JH -

and at 4.0% per annum.

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

I A0 L £ Ak I AL £ Ak 2 B

Amounts payable under R 95 Fill 5 FH %0
finance leases JRE A4St 3 T
Within one year —4FN - 55 - 54
Less: Future finance charges ¥ : & 2K @il & B 5% - (1) - =
Present value of lease FHL&) 74 2 B
obligation - 54 - 54
Less: Amount due for W ZHIR AR A
settlement within R
12 months (shown FIH (51
under current AT ) B
liabilities) HF) - (54)
Amount due for ZH T AR A 1%
settlement after i 452 2 3K IAH
12 months - =
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured A A H > RG4S T DU S R R IR
by the leased assets (see note 14). (R M EE14) -
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% % U4 A =+ H L4

24. SHARE CAPITAL

24. AR
Number of shares Nominal value
JBe Ay ¥ H i

Authorised: HIE -
Ordinary shares of 1 1 T (/0. 08 7T
HK$0.08 each A i
At beginning and end TR A T AR 4
of year 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000 120,000 120,000
Redeemable preference T BT (E0.0235 7T
shares of HK$0.02 each 2 ] B TR O A 500,000,000 500,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: R RS
Ordinary shares of 5 IR T8 (0. 08 7T
HK$0.08 each Z B
At beginning and end XY TS
of year 767,373,549 767,373,549 61,390 61,390

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital in

both years.

25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25.
At the end of the reporting period and during the year,

deferred tax liabilities (assets) have been recognised in
respect of the temporary differences attributable to the
following:

A T A T T AR AF BE 1A 8 e A o

HE % B0 51 £1 1%

TR 0 1 6 RO 47 0 > A SR I AR L
T 5 R A 2 T I e A A B U £ R
(BE) :

At 1 May 2012 WoFE—"FEAA—H 2,529 (2,528) 1
(Credit) charge to profit or loss s (GEA) kR

(Note 9) (Kt 7E9) (26) 26 =
At 30 April 2013 R-F—=ZFMH=1H 2,503 (2,502) 1
(Credit) charge to profit or loss RE 4 (FEA) 15

(Note 9) (H#9) 420 (420) -
At 30 April 2014 REZ—WENH=1H 2,923 2,922 1
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i)

26.

Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% % —Y

DA =+ H IR

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has

estimated unused tax losses of HK$427,367,000 (2013:
HK$424,322,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$17,712,000 (2013: HK$15,164,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$409,655,000 (2013: HK$409,158,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$1,458,000 (2013:
HK$1,220,000) that will expire within 5 years. Other tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
liabilities.

(1) FAIR VALUE OF THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
ON A RECURRING BASIS
The Group’s financial asset and financial liability
at FVTPL and AFS investment are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial instruments are determined.

Fair value

25.

26.

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ A*E

i S o S N S T Sl S
B 2 B % k5 18427,367,000% 7T (.2
— =4F 1 424,322,000% J0) 7] AR $E 8 R
A&t A o A 4R B © 5% 55 e 18 i R Ak
B E & E17,712,000% 6 (. F — =4 ¢
15,164,000% 7€) > {H H 7% 48 75 78 ) oK 2l
T FIACUR - Wl 4888 6% T~ 409,655,000%5 G
(—F—=4F : 409,158,000k 75) fifE 521k 1E
BIHEE - KR W%Iésﬁ@%mﬂﬁﬁq
F A 2 161,458,000 (—F — =
1,220,000%% 7t.) ﬁﬁﬁﬁh%)éﬂﬁTﬁFEﬁﬁ
A o

S TH2Z A Rl

R B 4R A A 5 T 52 )
R 7E 2 A L KR o

v

(i) MWD ARG

9 S R R LR A Rl
ARG E RN (AR AR 5 2 R E
FE % 4o A DA R T R o 4 B
A 0 ] &5 R R 1R 8 AU (E R o
AR PR AN 7B E B B TR

NG EHL -

Financial
assets/liabilities

LW

Structured foreign
currency forwards
contract

BTSN
A

AFS investment

A B

i
2014
ZR -4
Liability
- HK$4,156,000

=L
—4,156,000% 7T

2013
R4

Asset
— HK$46,000

HE
—46,000% 7T

Listed equity
securities in
Hong Kong
— HK$4,787,000
s iR A R 5
—4,787,0009 7t

There were no transfer between instruments in Level

1 and 2 in both years.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Fair value
hierarchy

B RSB

Level 2

B

Level 1

F—#

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
A AL B A B b R

Valuation techniques:
Discounted cash flow
and option pricing model.

il AT -

G B B 4 U
e

Key inputs:
Forward exchange rate,
contracted exchange rate
and discount rate.
EE
HE B o

Quoted bid price in an
active market.

L R CA PN

B — R — 8 TR R 4R 34 f
S5 Bk R RS o
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26.

27.

28.

ok o B 25 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% — & —H4EN A =1 H 14

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(i) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

AND FINANCIAL LTABILITIES THAT
ARE NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
ON A RECURRING BASIS

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cashflow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate their respective fair values.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Group’s

repayment of the collateralised bank borrowings of
approximately HK$151,885,000 (2013: HK$71,292,000)
was offset by the trade receivables transferred to a bank.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, an advance payment
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of
HKS$561,000 (2013: HK$4,417,000) was transferred to
construction in progress included in property, plant and
equipment.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

outstanding capital commitments as follows:

Capital expenditure in respect of

acquisition of property, plant and Bt 2 BRI AE R AE
equipment contracted for SR BA TS TR R
but not provided in the ZEAR 3L

consolidated financial statements

26.

27.

28.

AR B E -

ST HRZ A RME R ()

(i) olf I 45 AR 6 Bk R DL A fe Rl B
ZEMEREREBAMZ AR
fi

Hit&mERE keMARZ A RE
THARE BB & B R e 2 —
Je s W T E A A E o

A F R TR AR P e
oAt 0 7 M 4 R AR 2 R TH (D
BHA A2 REMA -

FERERERY

BEZFE—ENA =+ H IR A%
] 35 o il — M SR 1T 2 E 5 R il 3k IH
M 41 515 £7151,885,0004 J6 (& — =4 :
71,292,000%5 70) 2 A K ERAT (5 IR K -

BEEEN A =+ H IR > BE
Yy - W T 2 B 561,000% T (—
FE— =4 1 4,417,000 T) E =) 2 -
W S R TR B FE AR o

AR TR I
AR W AR - AEEA KRBT ZE
AGKIEW R

2014 2013
Z®-pAE CF =4
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T# T
3,097 4,624
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2

30.

B 2 B B A W

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

commitments in respect of premises for future minimum
lease payments under operating leases, which fall due as
follows:

20,

L& R Y

TR S A 300 D A6 SR RS > AR S AR GR A A AR A0
TR 3 SEA 2 R A o AR B A I 2 R A
AR DA AR 3 2

2014 2013

R MR TR AE

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T#x AR P

Within one year — 4N 11,048 8,884
In the second to fifth year inclusive F B AS (BIEHEREWA) 40,500 32,168
Over five years A LA 24,052 31,497
75,600 72,549

Leases are negotiated for a term of seven years (2013:
twenty years) for certain production facilities in the PRC
and terms of one to two years for other premises with fixed
monthly rentals.

RETIREMENT AND PENSION

SCHEMES
The Group currently participates in MPF Scheme for all

qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll costs or capped at HK$1,250
(HK$1,000 before 1 June 2012) (based on the choice of
employees) to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, which
contribution is matched by employees.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Group also
participate in the ORSO Scheme. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

30.

HUA T AL B 2 AR S T AT
E L (S =4 A 4F) > mH
ey 36 2 A RIEEE B — 2 W4 > i A
FH 4 J 18 5E o

Bk B 3% 8 Al il

ALEE A2 EGS EEIER SN
awrE - sl EEAZTNELET L
R XEARE®  EENBFEA - A%
&5 1 B 3T 4 AR 22 5% ER DAL, 2509 T (i
CF - ENH - HZ N A1,000850) B
ERR (g B ) [n) A i R A T
o BLE B K EE AR -

RBEZF-ZFNH =+ HILFE > &
S IR 2 B SR AR T o Bl EETE
ZAENEE T U A AL EE
o BAREA o
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30.

Ao 7 T 25 R I i

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #%E —F— V04N =1 H (L4

RETIREMENT AND PENSION

SCHEMES (continued)
All full time employees are eligible to join the ORSO

Scheme after completion of three continuous months
of service with the Group and opt to contribute a fixed
percentage of 3% or 5% of their monthly basic salary
whereas the Group contributes an equivalent amount to
that scheme. After December 2000, all employees exceeding
a specified income range are required to join the MPF. For
employees joining both schemes, the total contributions
made by each of the Group and the employees which
exceed the mandatory contributions required by the
MPF Scheme are paid to the ORSO Scheme as voluntary
contribution. In December 2012, the Group ceased the
participation in the ORSO Scheme and the accumulated
benefits of employees under the ORSO Scheme was
transferred to the MPF scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of retirement benefits schemes operated by
the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries were
required to contribute certain percentages of the monthly
salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits. The
employees were entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and
their length of service in accordance with the relevant
government regulations. The PRC government was
responsible for the pension liability to the retired staff.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year ended 30
April 2014 made by the Group amounted to HK$2,975,000
(2013: HK$2,453,000).

30.

WA B g2 il (A7)

FIn A 2 W A 58 % 7 268 I 5 A 4 11 9l = 1R A
BRI GBS MBSO KT E S g4
e H LA F Hi3%85% 2 [ 52 1 43 EAE
PR T A4 B R DA [R] 2 B et AR
HAEEK - M _FFTET AR BTA#
H 98 E WA 2 g B H2 O &
| o A [F] RF 22 Bz g JH Tl B9 R B T
B AR KRB S A 2 AR P
S P R OAE N €
BARFHE > MR BRSK - R =T — 4
TR AEEAE 2 RG]
1M 8 B 7B SR AR R 2 R EE A4 O MR
EX: et

A% ) v B s W 2 B T R B U B
AR R B IR Ew B A o A B P R
ARIAHBA BT A#HZE T A > At
AR > LU AR B AR A 48 o ARSEA BR BUR B
Bl > B Tl A 2B ARE T 1% HOR IR 2
HAFr & KRB ER A o B BT R
Rk B TORIEBAR &1 AT

BE F—WENH=+H IFFEE » K4E
&) ) b A 5T A 2 AR 452,975,000 T
(T —=4F : 2,453,00087C) ©
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31.

Ao B 5 A B i

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 29
November 2006. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
the eligible persons (the “Eligible Persons™) as defined in
the Scheme with the opportunity to acquire interests in
the Company and to encourage the Eligible Persons to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Board of Directors of the Company may
grant options to the Eligible Persons, including, but not
limited to, full-time employees or directors (excluding
Mr. Li) of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Eligible
Employee(s)”) or his or her associate.

A share option granted by the Company at nil
consideration is exercisable at any time for a period
determined by its directors which shall not be later than
the day immediately preceding the fifth anniversary of
the date of grant, where the acceptance date should not
be later than 28 days after the date of offer. The exercise
price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the Scheme shall be determined by the Board
of Directors but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; or (iii)
the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

31.

DA JB A 2 R e 2 Ak sk 52 5%
JBe 7A% 5 5700k B it it

RIER —FLZARFE+—H I RERZ
TR > AN F R B R ([ 3%
at#l)) o ZEtE B EA TG R EZ
BN L ([HER AL L) IEAAL FIHE 4
e Wi EM AL EALF R
e R 2 o B ) 2 T B 4R T AR O m B
2 fEMEH - AR EREG 05 EEAL
B2 e TR S E AR AL EE (H
BRI ) A% =) Je FL b & 2 7] 2 2= Bk A B
HES (AEEREE) (SERER]) 5K
HEBBAL -

A ) DS AE Dy A 2 B T A
il RE 2 D THT PR BB B AT (5 > e R AT ok R T
B B AR S IO AR AT — B > T
A H IR B A S H IR 28 B o ARIEEZ
w4 L S 2 AT G (B R
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31.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% — & —H4EN A =1 H 14

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (continued)

At 30 April 2014, an aggregate of 10,463,500 (2013:
12,965,000) share options granted under the Scheme
remained outstanding representing 1.4% (2013: 1.7%) of
the issued share capital of the Company. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which the options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of
approval of the Scheme. However, the total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue in such 12-month period up to and including the
proposed date of grant, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. No option shall be granted to
the Eligible Persons if the aggregate value of shares which
may be subscribed in respect of outstanding options exceed
(a) in case of an Eligible Employee, 5 times of his or her
then gross annual salary and (b) in any other cases, HK$5
million, or any other amount approved by the Board of
Directors either generally or on a case by case basis.

Sk

DA B By 7 BE W 2 A K 28 B (780)
JBe 7S 4% 5D B A it ) (50

MFE-PLEN A =+ H - REZE
Bz 4 3£10,463,50000 (& — =4 :
12,965,000/ ) ff IRRE 25 A1 AR AT > A0
ABNFCBITRAZ14% (ZFE—=
1.7%) o #R4EZ w1 ] BE 2 2 5 B4R irr
W B A5 d5e i S AN A R A AR A i v
b EE H 2 B AT RAR10% » SRT >
JIT A R AT (o8 g P AR A A T (o 1T AT RE AR AT 22 I
Py fo 75 BB > AR AR N W R Ry B BEAT
JE AR 22 30% o R KA\ F] R =5 SEHLHE
JAATART 12418 7 3 [B] 7 v R fia AT ] 18 7l 7 5%
N3z B IRV T 2 Iy 8 H > A5 R i
AN T AR ek H I (B dERZ H )
ZEZ 1210 H BA A BB AT B 2 1% © i Fk
B N 2 W ARAT R A T R 2 i
R EEREE GEEEKIERNS) H
B I 2 AT 3 SRR 0 SRE K (b) (AT AT HoAth
& WM F) 5,000,0009 T 58 & 2 6 i — ik
Bl A 17 YO0 17 o 2 AT ] E A 8 > HIR
5104 B A G ks N 32 A o
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 # % & —U4EN A =+ H IL4ERE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 31. DBy R B 2 sk 5 (48)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION JBe A &% S Vil I B St ) ()
SCHEME (continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TR FEAN A EE MR B IR A AN A
share options held by the directors of the Company and I RERE A 4 T 2 s

employees during the year:

Directors 3 December 2009 0455 1,890,000 - - (630,000) - 1,260,000
i3 “RENETCAZH
Employees 3 December 2009 0455 11,075,000 - - (187500) - 93500
5 ZREAELZAZH

12,965,000 - - (2501,500) - 10463500

Exercisable at the end PR AT

of the year 10,463,500
Weighted average T
exercise price HKS0.435i 10 - - HKS0455% 0 - HKS04558% 1
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31.

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% % U4 A =+ H L4

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by the directors of the Company and

employees during the prior year:

Sk

VLB By 2 B e 2 A R 28 5 (468)
JBE AR 5 S i B A it B (4g0)

T RWEA RN R E R LR B REAL F
R AR b — 4R 2 S )

Directors 11 May 2007 0.7 2,700,000 - - - (2,700,000) -
% “EZLELA TR
3 December 2009 0.455 1,890,000 - - - - 1,890,000
“EENETZRZH
Employees 11 May 2007 0.7 12,375,000 - - - (12,375,000) -
& “EZLELR TR
3 December 2009 0.455 11,603,000 - - (528,000) - 11,075,000
“EENETZRAZA
28,568,000 = = (5280000 (15,075,000) 12,965,000
Exercisable at the end PR
of the year 12,965,000
Weighted average 174
exercise price HKS0.584i6 7 - - HKS045S#T  HKSO.70%7C  HKS0.455i6
Note: During the year ended 30 April 2014, 2,501,500 (2013: et o REE_F—HEMHA =1+ H IEF

528,000) share options were forfeited by certain directors
of the Company and employees of the Group upon their
resignation from the respective position.

Share options were granted on 11 May 2007 and 3
December 2009 to different counterparties. Two-third of
total share options can be exercised at any time from the
date of acceptance whereas one-third of total share options
can be exercised on and after the first anniversary of the
grant date, provided the grantee has been in continuous
employment with the Group for one year from the date
of such grantee’s commencement of employment with or
appointment by the Group, until the date immediately
preceding the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

B TAAFAERELALERER 2
2,501,500 (=% — =4 : 528,0001)
S T P S 25 A T RS I
I

ARFAR-FFLFELA+—HEZFZE
JUAE+ A = H 8 AR 22 5 3 07 1% i ik
HE o AT PR 2 = 20 T A A
H R BE R AT 6 > 0 iR 2 =20 —
RT3t F 3 AR S R AT - R
By RN ZH v B A 32 AR A A 4R 1 s
AR B AT F IR FR A (R 7 A SR I —
o HERBREH RS EAER— B 5
1k o
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Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #Z% — & — 4N 7 =1 H 4R

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BBk TT A B
AR A H R SEHS rP W BB I O AT T
512 Yy

In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered
into the following transactions with related parties:

(A) Interest-free loans were obtained from Mr. Li, a
director and a shareholder of the Company with
significant influence over the Company, as disclosed
in note 22.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management during the year
were as follows:

(A)

(B)

MBARNFRAEREBNZAR
GER ¥ 308 & e ra ¥ N,
Ko T T B R 2245 5

FERFMARZHM

AN R S R A A N B R
FRZMEWT

2014 2013

S L

HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

T#T Tt

Fees and salaries M4 I 4 4,042 4,265
Retirement benefit schemes B R AR A FE A 2k 109 136
4,151 4,401

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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33.

Ao 7 T 25 R I i

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% — & —H4EN A =1 H 14

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33.
SUBSIDIARIES

The following are the particulars regarding the Company’s
subsidiaries at 30 April 2014 and 2013 which principally
affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that a full
list of all the subsidiaries will be of excessive length.
These subsidiaries operate principally in the place of
establishment/incorporation unless otherwise indicated.

Place of Paid up

establishment/ registered capital/

Name of subsidiary incorporation Principal activities Issued share capital
WRAR 4 # WL/ DR W 2 LR CHIEA/
CHfihA

The Industrial Investment Cayman Islands [nvestment holding 2,050 ordinary shares
Company Limited REHE REHR of HKS1 each
2050t (51

1Lk

QPL (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong [nvestment holding 408,000,772 ordinary
MERERRAT Fi &R shares of HKS$0.04 each
408,000,712/

0.0 T2 BB

QPL Limited (Note a) Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of 2 ordinary shares of
WERRAT (HFa) Bl integrated circuit HKS1 each and
leadframes, heatsinks 1,000 non-voting

and stiffeners deferred shares of
HKS1 each (Note b)

HERHEERERIIAE  MEREHEIETZ
HARIMEE SRR ER

ity =/Et

R (H7t o)

QPL (US) Inc. The USA Distribution of integrated 150,603 ordinary shares
KK circuit leadframes of no par value, paid

and investment holding up to USD4,071,281
PEERTRARE 150,600k EHELER
REEER  ERERS40T181FET

FEETF (FH) ARAA The PRC Distribution of stamped USD3,000,000
(Note ) (Hzt c) i leadframes and moulds 3,000,000 ¢
BRI R TR

EEME A F

UITAR _-F-NEE_F—=41HA
=t HEREEAEEES - BESARM
/NN D B R /N 5
o B PR W 2 Rl 2 4 BN A R T
B o B AL > %5 B A R E R
FORSE 5 M ST e B AR 4 o

Proportion of nominal value of

registered capital/
issued share capital held by
AR/ TR A Z B

Company subsidiary

AR WA
2014 2013 2014 2013

“R-pE %= “R-pE %=

% % % %
24 244 97.56 97.56
100 100 - -
- - 100 100
06.4 06.4 3.6 33.6
- - 100 100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao o B 5 S A ik

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 # % —ZF— U4 H =1 H L4
33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. BEWIEA A RN ()

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: Mt it -

a. Operating principally in the PRC. a. B A H ] 48 4% o

b. The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, are b. PR A 4 B R AT 2 IR AE Ry > B N 4

practically of no economic value. L8 IEAB Y o
ch The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprises c. BB B A R B ST AN A o

established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
any time during both years or at the end of both years.

34. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL

34. A2 vl Y 05 EORHBE

INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

T S 1D 4 B 1A o T[] S T M 4 2
R BRI A R AT AT B S

A R A 4 R J0 D A5 SRR 2 B R D

the Company at the end of the reporting period includes: FZERE

2014 2013

R W4AE R

HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000

T#L THoo

Investments in subsidiaries and amounts i B J&§ 28 7 2 & K

due from subsidiaries JFEE ke B R A ] S IE 26,872 26,529

AFS investment CIRG YR g < - 4,787

Other current assets HoAth 3 B) & 207 455
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A I JaB 2 ) 3k TA 2,374) (2,415)
Other borrowings HoAth i B (949) (6,529)
Other current liabilities HAth 5 B A E (850) (1,557)

22,906 21,270

Share capital (Note 24) A (it iE24) 61,390 61,390
Share premium and reserves B 163 Ve 184 % fts A (38,484) (40,120)

22,906 21,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 30 April 2014 #% % U4 A =+ H L4

34. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Movement in Reserves

34. 72 i 0 RHBE2E (4

1k 5 8 B

At 1 May 2012 RoE—ALA—H 147,812 75,878 12,310 342 4748 (85829)  (44739)
Profit for the year RER A = - = - - 3011 3,011
Other comprehensive income  44F [ Kt 2: i i &
for the year = = = 3816 = = 3816
Total comprehensive REERTGAH
income for the year = = = 3816 = 3,011 6,827
Forfeiture and lapsed EUCTG I ISR
of share options - - - - (2,208) - (2,208)
At 30 April 2013 REF-ZFMA=FH 147,812 75,878 12,310 4,158 2,540 (282,818) (40,120)
Profit for the year AR - - - - - 6,151 6,151
Other comprehensive AEELM2TRL
expense for the year - - - (4,158) - - (4,158)
Total comprehensive REERT ()
(expense) income Yo %
for the year - - - (4,158) - 6,151 1,993
Forfeiture of share options it - - - - (514) 157 (357)
At 30 April 2014 RoZ-MENAZTH 147,812 75,878 12,310 - 2,026 (276,510) (38,484)
Notes: Vin=a
a. Contributed surplus represents the excess of the net assets a. BT T GRS T AL B R B TR
of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the B AR N AR T AR T B AT 2 40 1 T
Company’s shares issued as consideration. (B2 5% -
b. Capital redemption reserve represents the excess of the b. A I [0 45 5 i (] A N ) 0 % 2 T

consideration paid for repurchase of the Company’s
ordinary shares over the par value of respective
repurchased shares.

APARAE - 8 R R 2 0 1o B (L 2 25
o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
S 5 MR 22

VAR 7% 74 48 B it 25 o B B4 B2 2 B S MR L > T
gk B AL O T BT G MBHRE

The financial summary of the Group for the past five financial
years, as extracted from the Group’s published audited
consolidated financial statements, are set out below:

TURNOVER AND PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE % 3% K A 45 B JBe 5 BE A% e A O 18])
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

For the year ended 30 April
BRENAZ1HILEE

Turnover WEH 325,287 353,998 279,131 217,180 262,714
Profit (loss) before taxation BB i e ) (5 2) 25,081 (12,125) (5,497) (5,304) 2,699
Taxation charge B (1,530) (1,028) (990) (811) (1,044)
Profit (loss) for the year R A I HRRE A

attributable to shareholders i A (s 48) 23,551 (13,153) (6,487) (6,115) 1,655

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES "Rk
At 30 April
HWA=1H

Property, plant and equipment VESE YT 51,072 60,066 54,794 57,361 58,955
Available-for-sale investment [ - - 2,051 4,787 -
Other receivable A Wi 2 0E = 994 = - -
Advance payment for acquisition ~ FEEWE - HH K
of property, plant and equipment i Z B3k - 838 4,638 1,094 533
Current assets B & E 141,726 128,125 99,299 80,615 119,643
Current liabilities W B £ £ (88,474)  (100,176)  (77,848)  (63,576)  (103,954)
104,324 89,847 82,934 80,281 75,177
Share capital Jie A 61,390 61,390 61,390 61,390 61,390
Share premium and reserves i 15 e s A 39,160 24,965 18,587 16,315 13,786
Shareholders fund R & & 100,550 86,355 79,977 71,705 75,176
Accrued expenses JE5H 2 3,555 3,229 2,902 2,575 -
Deferred taxation R AE R I = 1 1 1 1
Obligations under finance leases il AL 4R 219 262 54 = -
104,324 89,847 82,934 80,281 75,177

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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